
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190; Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080, Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 

 

 

    

  

 

                                                                                                                                                                                          
 

AGENDA 

BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

Regular Board Meeting 

 Tuesday, June 14, 2016 

Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA 

 

 
   9:00 AM Call to Order  

   Approval of Minutes 

 June 7, 2016 Board Meeting 

 

   Review Agenda 

 

Consent Agenda  

      

Auditor 

a. Surplus of Personal Property    

BOE 

b. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 103   

Commissioners 

c. Award of Contract for Official County Newspaper to Tri-City Herald 

d. Memorandum of Understanding for the Allocation of Adult Drug Court & Juvenile Drug 

Court Program Costs 

Fairgrounds   

e. Purchase of Crushed Rock from C & E Trenching  

f. Contract w/Total Energy Management for Installation of 2 Gas Packaged Units  

Human Services 

g. 2nd Amended Agreement w/Service Alternatives, Inc. for Developmental Disability Services    

h. 2nd Amended Agreement w/Ambitions Community Support Services of WA, Inc. for 

Developmental Disabilities Services 

i. Amended (A) Agreement w/WA St Dept of Commerce, Community Services & Housing 

Division  

j. 2nd Amended Agreement w/Goodwill Industries for Developmental Disabilities Services 

k. 1st Amended Agreement w/S Adolphsen for Parent Coalition  

l. 2nd Amended Agreement w/Columbia Industries for Developmental Disabilities Services 

m. 2nd Amended Agreement w/Children’s Developmental Center for Developmental Disabilities 

Services 

n. 2nd Amended Agreement w/The Arc of Tri-Cities for Developmental Disabilities Services 

Information Technology 

o. Purchase of Two Standard Workstations, Laptops & Mobile Printers  

Parks 

p. 2nd Amended Contract w/Bauder Grading & Excavation for Irrigation System @ Fairgrounds 

& Vista Park   

Personnel 

q. Contract w/Praetorian Group, Inc. for Online Training Courses 

Jerome Delvin 
District 1 

Shon Small 
District 2 

James Beaver 
District 3 

Board of County Commissioners 
BENTON COUNTY 

David Sparks 
County Administrator 

 
Loretta Smith Kelty 

Deputy County Administrator             

mailto:commissioners@co.benton.wa.us
WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Text Box
To view items in detail, please click on the highlighted area. 



Agenda - Board of County Commissioners 

June 14, 2016 

Page 2 

 

 

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190;   Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080,   Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 

 

r. Agreement w/PricewaterhouseCoopers for Review of Workers’ Compensation & Liability 

Programs 

s. Rescinding Resolution 2016-450, Establishing an Adult Drug Court Coordinator 

Classification Description & Salary Grade 

Public Works 

t. 1st Amended Contract w/Solid Structures for Construction of 3 Storage Sheds 

u. Award of Prosser to Grandview Pedestrian & Bicycle Pathway Improvements to Grade Worx  

 

Public Hearing 

 

Comprehensive Amendment CPA 2016-001 ~ M Shuttleworth 

 

Zone Change – ZC 2016-001 ~ M Shuttleworth 

 

Short Plat Vacation 2016-002 ~ M Shuttleworth  

 

Scheduled Business 

 

Final Plat of Summit View; SUB 2016-002 ~ M Shuttleworth    

 

Road Department Annual Report & Presentation ~ M Rasmussen 

 

Unscheduled Visitors 

   Other Business      

mailto:commissioners@co.benton.wa.us
WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight



 - 1 - 

MINUTES 

 

BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

 

Regular Board Meeting 

Tuesday, June 7, 2016, 9:00 a.m. 

Commissioners’ Conference Room  

Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA 

 

Present: Chairman Shon Small 

  Commissioner Jerome Delvin 

  Commissioner James Beaver 

  County Administrator David Sparks   

  Clerk of the Board Cami McKenzie 

 

Benton County Employees Present During All or a Portion of the Meeting: Deputy 

Administrator Loretta Smith Kelty; Adam Fyall, Sustainable Development Manager; County 

Engineer Matt Rasmussen; Assistant County Engineer Robert Blain; Planning Manager Mike 

Shuttleworth; DPA Ryan Brown; Auditor Brenda Chilton; Clerk Josie Delvin; District Court 

Administrator Jacki Lahtinen; RJ Lott, Planning Dept.; Public Services Administrator Fred 

Bowen; Personnel Manager Lexi Wingfield; Lorene Roe, Auditor’s Office.   

 

Approval of Minutes 

 

The Minutes of May 24, 2016 were approved.   

 

Consent Agenda 

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Beaver moved to approve the consent agenda items “a” through “y”, 

pulling “g”, “h” and “i” (Human Services – Terminating River of Life Metropolitan Community 

Church Agreements) for discussion.  Commissioner Delvin seconded and upon vote, the Board 

approved the following: 

 

Auditor 

a. Adopting the Federally Provided 10% De Minimis Indirect Cost Rate for Federal Grants  

b. Surplus of Personal Property  

Commissioners 

c. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 138; Rescinding Resolution 2016-369 

d. Reappointing V.J. Meadows to Benton County Public Facilities District  

e. Reappointing D Akers to Benton County Public Facilities District 

Human Services 

f. Contract w/ABM Janitorial Services – South Central, Inc. for Janitorial Services 

Information Technology 

j. Addendum Warranty, Support & License Agreement w/Hart Intercivic 

Parks 

k. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0110-102, Dept. 000  



 - 2 - 

Personnel 

l. Health Reimbursement Arrangement Voluntary Employee Beneficiary Association 

Policies & Procedures for Bi-County Non-Bargaining; Rescinding Resolution 2013-416 

m. Establishing an Adult Drug Court Coordinator Classification Description & Salary Grade 

n. Establishing a Behavioral Health Specialist Probation Officer Classification Description & 

Salary Grade 

o. Establishing an Engineering Intern Classification Description & Salary Grade   

Public Safety Tax 

p. Line Item Transfer, Fund 0148-101, Dept. 106   

q. Correction of LPA II to LPA III Under Line Item 0148101.106.00000.512.300.1640 

r. Purchase of 5 LibertyNET Licenses for Clerk’s Office 

Public Works  

s. Coding Correction for Dept. 650   

t. Traffic Control on County Roads re Speed Limit 

u. Authorization of Construction Plans of Beverly Meadows Phase 2 

v. Purchase Two 48” & Two 36” Port-A-Cool Fans from A-L Compressed Gasses, Inc. 

w. Contract w/Granite Construction Company for Locust Grove Road Asphalt Repair 

x. Agreement w/WA State Dept of Transportation to Perform Testing & Fabrication 

Inspection  

y. Interlocal Agreement w/Benton City, Kennewick, Prosser, Richland & W Richland 

Regarding WA State Coordinated Prevention Grant  

 

Consent Agenda Items “g”, “h” and “i” – Termination of Agreements with River of Life 

Metropolitan Community Church 

 

Kyle Sullivan said they had three housing contracts with River of Life Metropolitan Community 

Church nd there had been concern from allied agencies about it not being a safe environment for 

people that were referred there.  He said they met with the agency and talked about ways to correct 

the concerns and have since received more complaints.  They sent a letter to the director requesting 

corrective action or they would consider terminating the contracts.  The response was not adequate 

and did not meet their expectations so he was asking to terminate the contracts. 

 

Commissioner Delvin asked if there were other providers that could provide those services and 

Mr. Sullivan said the services would continue with other providers.   

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Delvin move to approve signing the resolution and letters of 

termination to River of Life Metropolitan Community Church for the three agreements as 

presented.  Commissioner Beaver seconded and upon vote, the motion carried.   

 

Chairman Small asked about an update on moving forward with the contract with Rick Weaver to 

provide consultation for comprehensive health.  Mr. Sullivan said he just spoke with the Franklin 

County Administrator and was told due to the volume of contracts they currently had, it was sent 

to their contracted attorney for review and it would be discussed at Franklin County’s meeting on 

Wednesday.  He said he would attend that meeting and provide the Commissioners with an update.   

 

 



 - 3 - 

Subdivision Alteration – SA 2016-001 

 

RJ Lott said the Planning Department received an application for subdivision alteration to adjust 

the lot lines of Lots 4 through 8 and subsequently the removal of notes 3 and 7 from the plat.  He 

said it went to the Planning Commission and their recommendation was that they keep note 3 in 

place and amend number 7.  The Planning Department recommended approval of this alteration 

as presented with the condition.   

 

As there was no one present to testify, public testimony was closed.   

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Delvin move to adopt the findings of fact as indicated in the staff 

memo dated April 4, 2016 and approve the alteration of the Final Plat of Tripple Vista Estates No. 

2 subject to the conditions listed in the resolution.  Commissioner Beaver seconded and upon vote, 

the motion carried. 

 

Continued Public Hearing – SPV 2015-001 

 

Mr. Lott said that he and County Engineer Matt Rasmussen met with the applicants on site and 

discussed the topography and building site.  He said that based upon the comments from Mr. 

Rasmussen included in the record, they were recommending approval of the 20-foot natural 

drainage easement.   

 

As there was no one present to testify, public testimony was closed.  

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Delvin moved to approve the vacation of the 20-foot Natural Drainage 

Easement located on Lots 1, 2 and 3 of Short Plat 1062 recorded under AF 828105.  Commissioner 

Beaver seconded and upon vote, the motion carried. 

 

Public Hearing – Six Year Road Program 

 

Matt Rasmussen said they were required annually to present and approve the Six-Year Road 

Program.  Additionally, the bridge report needed to be included and currently the Yakima County 

bridge inspector provided that service.  However, he was in the process of getting certified and 

would be able to perform that service (certification required a PE).   

 

He said the Board had a workshop approximately six weeks ago and there were no major changes 

or adjustments from what they provided at that time.   

 

As there was no one present to testify, public testimony was closed.   

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Delvin moved to approve 2017-2022 Six-Year Road Program as 

presented.  Commissioner Beaver seconded and upon vote, the motion carried.   

 

Visit Tri-Cities Brand Implementation 

 

Kyle Cox gave a progress report on the Brand Implementation Team and discussed the following: 



 - 4 - 

 

 Benefits of branding 

 Implementation of the plan 

 Committees and members 

 Infusing the brand into the community (sculptures, creating new products) 

 Marketing, Website, Tri-Cities Logo 

 

WASPC Registered Sex Offender Grant Agreement 

 

Cpt. Vannoy via/videoconference said the Sheriff’s office had participated in this program for 

several years, they were awarded $139,584.78 to continue this program, and he requested the 

Board authorize the agreement.   

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Beaver moved to approve the attached resolution and agreement 

between the Washington Association of Sheriffs & Police Chiefs and Benton County Sheriff’s 

Office for the FY 2016/2017 Registered Sex Offender Address and Residency Verification 

Program Award in the amount of $139,584.78.  Commissioner Delvin seconded and upon vote, 

the motion carried.   

 

Workmen’s Compensation Fund 

 

Lexi Wingfield said due to the increased number of work comp claims and expenses related to 

medical payments, she was requesting the Board go to public hearing to consider a budget 

adjustment.  The Board agreed to move forward and requested Ms. Wingfield bring back more 

detail and categorize the claims for review at the public hearing.   

 

3rd Contract Amendment w/Meier Enterprises, Inc. – Justice Center Remodel 

 

Fred Bowen requested the Board authorize an amendment to the current contract to increase their 

scope of work to include changes to the offices for Administration, IT, PA Civil Department, 

District Court Mental Health and storage areas.  This would also include construction 

administration and would increase the contract from $80,000 to $170,800.   

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Beaver move to authorize the Public Services Administrator to prepare 

a third contract amendment with Meier Enterprises, Inc. to increase the scope of work for the 

development of construction plans and specifications to the offices for Administration, IT, PA Civil 

Department, District Court Mental Health and to the storage areas, and to include Construction 

Administration during the construction phase of the projects.  Commissioner Delvin seconded and 

upon vote, the motion carried.   

 

New Contract w/Meier Enterprises, Inc. – WSU Extension 

 

Mr. Bowen said they advertised a Request for Qualifications soliciting firms to provide 

architectural and engineering services for a tenant improvement to the Benton County Health 

Building for new office space for WSU.   

 



 - 5 - 

He said that two firms responded and he recommended Meier Enterprises, Inc. 

 

Mr. Sparks said this was the key project in the overall remodel and relocation for offices.  Once 

WSU was moved, they could move the Assessor back to the Annex and then begin changes at the 

Justice Center.   

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Beaver moved to authorize the Public Services Administrator to 

prepare a contract with Meier Architecture-Engineering to provide architectural and engineering 

services for the tenant improvement to the Health Building for new office space for Benton County – 

WSU Extension.  Commissioner Delvin seconded and upon vote, the motion carried.   

 

Junior Achievement of WA Leadership Industry Award 

 

Auditor Brenda Chilton said each year the Auditor’s office participated in the Jr. Achievement 

fundraiser event and she wanted to recognize the team and particularly Lorene Roe as the team 

leader in the fundraising efforts. Additionally, she said they received a plaque honoring them with 

an award for leadership in the industry.   

 

Final Plat – Hidden Hills Phase 3 – SUB 2016-001 

 

Mike Shuttleworth presented the final plat of Hidden Hills Phase 3 for signature by the Board.  He 

said the project was now complete and they had received all approvals and signatures.   

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Beaver moved to approve the Final Plat of Hidden Hills Phase 3 and 

authorize the Chairman to sign the final plat.  Commissioner Delvin seconded and upon vote, the 

motion carried.   

 

Other Business 

 

Commissioner Delvin said the City of Seattle passed a resolution last week regarding nuclear 

energy and they wanted to shut down the Columbia Generating Plant.  He said he didn’t appreciate 

Seattle trying to impose their personal values on Benton County so he asked the Board to consider 

signing a resolution that would not authorize Benton County employees to travel to Seattle and to 

just give it some thought.   

 

Claim for Damages 

 

CC 2016-09: Received on June 2, 2016 from Andrew Krom 

 

Vouchers 

 

Check Date: 04/11/2016 

 

Warrant #: 239559 

Total all funds: $3,768.65 

 

 



 - 6 - 

Check Date:  04/19/2016 

 

Warrant #: 239563 

Total all funds: $2,752.43 

 

Check Date:  05/10/2016 

 

Warrant #: 239645 

Total all funds: $2,977.17 

 

Check Date:  05/27/2016 

 

Transfers #: 5271601-5271608 

Total all funds: $299,148.58 

 

Warrants #: 139948-140063 

Total all funds:  $596,929.66 

 

Check Date:  06/03/2016 

 

Warrants #: 140072-140298 

Total all funds:  $6,523.69 

 

Transfers #: 06031601-06031605 

Total all funds:  $259,386.08 

 

Warrants #: 140304-140391 

Total all funds:  $1,446,436.37 

Warrant #: 140392 

Total all funds:  $1,000.00 

 

Check Date:  06/03/2016 

 

Payroll Checks 

Warrants #: 239661-239713 

Direct Deposit #: 114480-115090 

Total all funds:  $2,177,873.94 

 

Payroll Deductions Transfers 

Taxes #: 10116061-101160614 

Total all funds:  $1,882,003.47 

 

Payroll Deductions Warrants 

Warrants #: 140393-140403 

Total all funds:  $374,762.75 

 



 - 7 - 

Total amounts approved by fund can be reviewed in the Benton County Auditor’s Office. 

 

Resolutions 

 

2016-440: Adopting the Federally Provided 10% De Minimis Indirect Cost Rate for Federal 

Grants  

2016-441: Surplus of Personal Property  

2016-442: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 138; Rescinding Resolution 2016-

369 

2016-443: Reappointing V.J. Meadows to Benton County Public Facilities District  

2016-444: Reappointing D Akers to Benton County Public Facilities District 

2016-445: Contract w/ABM Janitorial Services – South Central, Inc. for Janitorial Services 

2016-446: Addendum Warranty, Support & License Agreement w/Hart Intercivic 

2016-447: This number skipped in error 

2016-448: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0110-102, Dept. 000  

2016-449: Health Reimbursement Arrangement Voluntary Employee Beneficiary Association 

Policies & Procedures for Bi-County Non-Bargaining; Rescinding Resolution 

2013-416 

2016-450: Establishing an Adult Drug Court Coordinator Classification Description & Salary 

Grade 

2016-451: Establishing a Behavioral Health Specialist Probation Officer Classification 

Description & Salary Grade 

2016-452: Establishing an Engineering Intern Classification Description & Salary Grade   

2016-453: Line Item Transfer, Fund 0148-101, Dept. 106   

2016-454: Correction of LPA II to LPA III – Public Safety Tax Fund – Clerk’s Office  

2016-455: Purchase of 5 LibertyNET Licenses for Clerk’s Office 

2016-456: Coding Correction Between Facilities and ER&R Fund  

2016-457: Traffic Control on County Roads re Speed Limit 

2016-458: Authorization of Construction Plans of Beverly Meadows Phase 2 

2016-459: Purchase Two 48” & Two 36” Port-A-Cool Fans from A-L Compressed Gasses, 

Inc. 

2016-460: Contract w/Granite Construction Company for Locust Grove Road Asphalt Repair 

2016-461: Agreement w/WA State Dept of Transportation to Perform Testing & Fabrication 

Inspection  

2016-462: Interlocal Agreement w/Benton City, Kennewick, Prosser, Richland & W Richland 

Regarding WA State Coordinated Prevention Grant  

2016-463: Termination Of Grant Agreement # 2016-HHAA-ROLMCC-YARP Between 

Human Services And River Of Life Metropolitan Community Church 

2016-464: Termination Of Grant Agreement # 2016-HHAA-ROLMCC-ANSIL-ARP 

Between Human Services And River Of Life Metropolitan Community Church 

2016-465: Termination Of Grant Agreement # 2016-HHAA-ROLMCC-ASC Between 

Human Services And River Of Life Metropolitan Community Church 

2016-466: Approval Of Subdivision Alteration Request For Tripple Vista Estates No. 2 - File 

No. SA-2016-001 - Applicant Randy And Marleen Lechelt 

2016-467: Approval Of Proposed Vacation Of A 20-Foot Natural Drainage Easement - File 

SPV 2015-001 



 - 8 - 

2016-468: Approval of the 2017-2022 Six Year Road Program 

2016-469: Authorizing the Sheriff to Sign the Interagency Agreement with WA Association 

of Sheriffs and Police Chiefs 

2016-470: Final Plat of Hidden Hills Phase 3 

 

There being no further business before the Board, the meeting adjourned at approximately 10:00 

a.m.   

 

_______________________________   ______________________________ 

Clerk of the Board      Chairman 

 



A. Coverdell 

 
  
BACKGROUND INFORMATION  

 

As outlined in Resolution 07-752, the Public Works department requests supply and 

minor equipment items be declared surplus and be disposed of. 

 

 

SUMMARY  

The Personal Property Manager has determined that the personal property on the attached 

exhibit can be declared surplus and disposed of accordingly.  

 
  

AGENDA/WORKSHOP ITEM TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED         

Meeting Date: June 14, 2016 Execute Contract      Consent Agenda x    

Subject: 

Declaration of Surplus 

Property  Pass Resolution  x   Public Hearing     

   Pass Ordinance      1st Discussion     

By: A. Coverdell Pass Motion      2nd Discussion     

Reviewed By: V. Pettey / B. Chilton Other      Other      

                    

WEH
Text Box
a. Surplus of Personal Property



A. Coverdell 

RESOLUTION 
 

 
BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
 
IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY POLICY, RE: SURPLUS OF PERSONAL PROPERTY IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH RESOLUTION 07-752 
 
 
WHEREAS, The Benton County Auditor is the Personal Property Manager and maintains an updated 
inventory listing of County Personal Property; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Public Works department has identified supply items and minor equipment which have 
become obsolete; and, 
 
WHEREAS, it is the recommendation of the Personal Property Manager and the Public Works 
department that the listed property be declared surplus; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board finds it to be in the best interest of the citizens of Benton County to surplus 
antiquated and obsolete property; NOW, THEREFORE 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, that based on the recommendation of the Personal Property Manager and as 
supported by the Public Works department, the listed property in Attachment A is hereby determined 
to be surplus and will be held for online auction, the next surplus sale, disposed of as waste, or recycled 
depending on final condition assessment. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dated this _________day of _____________________, 2016. 
 
       

_______________________________________ 
      Chairman of the Board 
 

_______________________________________ 
      Member 
 

_______________________________________ 
      Member  

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners of 
Benton County, Washington  

 
Attest: ___________________________ 

Clerk of the Board    
 

  
  



A. Coverdell 

ATTACHMENT A 
 
 
13 (thirteen) straw bales (3' x 4' x 7 ea) 
 
Miscellaneous office supply items: 
 Including but not limited to- excess paper, desk top file organizers, calculators, two-hole punch, 
bookends, excess toner (OCE 3200), office chairs, rolodex card files 
 
Multiple cameras and cases 
 
Comb-Bind Machine w/binding combs 
 
Oce 7055 large format copier (w/toner – 2) 
 
Ulrich Planfile large document storage file cabinets (plat) 
 
Misc large document storage file cabinets (short-plat) 
 
Safety vests (4) 
 
Hewlett Packard 32S II calculator (non-working) 
 
JawBone Bluetooth headsets (5) 
 
 



RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 

 

 

 

 

 

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY FUNDS RE: TRANSFER OF FUNDS WITHIN CURRENT 

EXPENSE FUND NUMBER 0000-101, DEPARTMENT NUMBER 103 

 

 

 

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, that funds shall be transferred 

as outlined in Exhibit “A”, attached hereto. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Dated this…………………….day of………………….. , 20………… 

 

 

               

                  Chairman of the Board 

 

               

                     Member 
 

               

                     Member  

Attest:  ………………………………..               Constituting the Board of County 

 Clerk of the Board                  Commissioners of Benton County, 

                         Washington  

 

 

 

WEH
Text Box
b. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 103



EXHIBIT A      BENTON COUNTY  RESOLUTION NO.   
                                                                                              LINE ITEM TRANSFERS 

 

DEPARTMENT: Board of Equalization       DEPARTMENT NO. 103   
 

FUND NAME: Current Expense        FUND NO. 0000-101    
 

TRANSFER FROM:       TRANSFER TO: 
 

BASE SUB 
(6 digit) 

LINE ITEM 
(4 digit) 

LINE ITEM  
NAME 

AMOUNT BASE SUB 
(6 digit) 

LINE ITEM 
(4 digit) 

LINE ITEM 
NAME 

AMOUNT 

514.240 

 

1190 Secretary $50.00 514.240 4103 Professional 

Services 

$50.00 

        

        

 

EXPLANATION: Funds need to be transferred due to cost of legal notice in paper.     
                   

                    
 
Prepared by: Peggy Brown     Date:  6/2/16    

 
Approved  ( ) 

Denied  ( )      Date:       
 
         

         Chairman 
 
         

           Member 
 

         
           Member 



WEH
Text Box
c. Award of Contract for Official County Newspaper to Tri-City Herald









WEH
Text Box
d. Memorandum of Understanding for the Allocation of Adult Drug Court & Juvenile Drug Court Program Costs











 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date 06/14/16 
Subject:      C & E Trenching LLC 
Prepared by:   J. Donley  
Reviewed by:   

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 
Execute Contract __X__ 
Pass Resolution  __X__  
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion  _____  
Other   _____ 

 

 

Consent Agenda            __X__  
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

   
 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 

The Benton County Fairgrounds is currently in the process of controlling dust and erosion in various 
areas of the grounds.  Crushed rock and gravel are needed to cover areas used for traffic to control 
the dust.  Bids were solicited from the following companies:  
 

• C & E Trenching- Pasco, WA – $11.75/ Ton 
• Central Washington Asphalt- Benton City, WA - $14.00/Ton 
• Granite Construction Company – Pasco, WA – did not respond  

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Authorize the purchase of crushed rock and gravel from C & E Trenching, LLC for the Benton 
County Fairgrounds in an amount not to exceed $24,999.00 including W.S.S.T. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
To be paid from Fairgrounds Operating Budget 0124-101 
 
MOTION 
 
Move to approve the purchase.                     
 

WEH
Text Box
e. Purchase of Crushed Rock from C & E Trenching



Orig: Commissioners 
cc: Auditor; S. Araiza; Facilities; F. Bowen  J. Donley 

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY,  WASHINGTON:  

IN THE MATTER OF AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF CRUSHE D ROCK 
FOR THE BENTON COUNTY FAIRGROUNDS FROM C & E TRENCH ING, 
LLC 
 

WHEREAS, per resolution 2012-677 the Board of Benton County Commissioners 
approved a County-Wide Procurement, Leasing and Contracting Policy; and  
 
WHEREAS, per section 2.2.2 (Purchases or Leases between $5,000 and $24,999) county 
departments are required to obtain quotations from at least three (3) vendors on the 
vendor list and such purchase is to be approved by the Board of Benton County 
Commissioners by resolution; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Benton County Fairgrounds has a need for crushed rock to be used for 
erosion and dust control; and  
 
WHEREAS, bids were solicited and received from the following: 

• C & E Trenching, LLC – Pasco, WA. $11.75/ton  
• American Rock Products, Inc.– Pasco, WA $13.50/ton  
• Granite Construction Company – Pasco, WA did not respond 

 
WHEREAS, the Benton County Public Services Administrator recommends purchasing 
the crushed rock from C & E Trenching, LLC  ; NOW, THEREFORE,  

 
BE IT RESOLVED,  the Board of Benton County Commissioners hereby authorizes the 
purchase of crushed rock for the Benton County Fairgrounds to be used for erosion and 
dust control from C & E Trenching, LLC, in an amount not to exceed $24,999.00 to be 
paid from the Fairgrounds O & M Budget Fund 0124-101. 
 
 
Dated this . . . . . . . day of . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . , 2016.   

 
       

Chairman of the Board  
 

       
Chairman Pro-Tem 

 
            ___ 

Member 
 

       Constituting the Board of County 
Attest: . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .   Commissioners of Benton County, Washington 
 Clerk of the Board        
 



 
 
 
 QUOTE NO 

C&E Trenching LLC 52 

PO Box 3788 
Pasco, WA 99302 
Phone: (509) 545-6940 
Fax: (509) 545-8671 

 

Benton County 
7320 W Quinault 
Kennewick, WA 99336 

 
QUOTE DATE VALID THRU FOR PAGE 

5/26/2016 12/1/2016 Fairgrounds  
 

 

1 

QUOTE 

TO 

ITEM NO QUANTITY DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE EXTENDED  

R2200 1 5/8" Minus Crush-Top Course: per 
ton truck and pup loads delivered to 
Benton County Fairgrounds 

11.75 11.75  

R8300 1 Scalping rock per ton delivered in 
truck and pup quantities to Benton 
Farigrounds 

8.50 8.50  

 
 
 

 
 TOTAL AMOUNT 20.25 





 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date 06/14/16 
Subject:         Total Energy  
Prepared by:   J. Donley  
Reviewed by:    

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 
Execute Contract __X__ 
Pass Resolution  __X__  
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion  _____  
Other   _____ 

 

 

Consent Agenda            __X__  
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

   
 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 

The Benton County Fairgrounds solicited quotes from the following companies for the installation of 
a new HVAC system to replace the current swamp cooler and oil heater in Building 16 per the 
Capital Improvement Plan.   
 

• Total Energy Management, Inc. – Richland, WA. - $32,656.02 including w.s.s.t 
• M. Campbell & Company, Inc. - Pasco, WA. - $35,195.09 including w.s.s.t 
• Apollo Sheet Metal, Inc. – Kennewick, WA. – $34,393.62 including w.s.s.t  

 
Proposals were reviewed and the recommendation is to move forward with a contract for said 
services with Total Energy Management, Inc. as the lowest bidder.   
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve the attached Resolution and Contract between Benton County and Total Energy 
Management, Inc. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Not to exceed $32,656.02.00 including W.S.S.T to be paid from REET Fund 
 
MOTION 
 
Move to approve the attached contract between Benton County and Total Energy Management, Inc. 
                    
 

WEH
Text Box
f. Contract w/Total Energy Management for Installation of 2 Gas Packaged Units



Orig: Commissioners   J. Donley  
cc: Auditor; S. Araiza; Contract Management; F. Bowen; Total Energy Management, Inc.  

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY,  WASHINGTON:  
 
IN THE MATTER OF A CONTRACT BETWEEN BENTON COUNTY A ND TOTAL ENERGY 
MANAGEMENT, INC., FOR INSTALLATION OF TWO (2) CARRI ER 5 TON 48KCE GAS PACKAGED 
UNITS IN BUILDING 16 AT THE BENTON COUNTY FAIRGROUN DS 
 
WHEREAS, Per Resolution 2012-677, any public works services or materials involving less than $40,000 may be 
entered into after direct negotiation and authorization from the Board of Benton County Commissioners; and 
 
WHEREAS, proposals were solicited and received from the following contractors:  
 

• Total Energy Management, Inc. – Richland, WA. - $32,656.02 including w.s.s.t 
• M. Campbell & Company, Inc. - Pasco, WA. - $35,195.09 including w.s.s.t 
• Apollo Sheet Metal, Inc. – Kennewick, WA. – $34,393.62 including w.s.s.t  

 
And; 
 
WHEREAS, the Benton County Fairgrounds Office Manager reviewed the quotes and recommends awarding the 
installation of two (2) Carrier 5 ton 48KCE gas packaged units in Building 16 at the Benton County Fairgrounds to 
Total Energy Management, Inc. as the lowest bidder for an amount not to exceed $32,656.02 including W.S.S.T. 
NOW, THEREFORE 
 
BE IT RESOLVED , the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, Washington hereby agrees with 
the recommendation and awards the installation of two (2) Carrier 5 ton 48KCE gas packaged units in Building 16 at 
the Benton County Fairgrounds to Total Energy Management, Inc., for a contract amount not to exceed $32,656.02 
including W.S.S.T; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED the contract shall begin upon execution by both parties and expire on December 
31st, 2016; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED , the Board hereby authorizes the Chairman to sign the service agreement attached 
hereto.  
 
Dated this . . . . . . . day of . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . , 20 . . . .  

       
Chairman of the Board  

 
       

Chairman Pro-Tem 
 

         
Member 

 
Constituting the Board of County 

Attest: . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .      Commissioners of Benton County, 
 Clerk of the Board      Washington 
 
 
 
 











































State of Washington

Department of Labor & Industries
���������	
��	�
������
�
���������
������������

��
���
������
��� ����
�!
�"��������

Washington State Prevailing Wage
���
�#$%!&'&()
�!)$�
��*��+
����
���,+�
-���
���
��,���
.�	�
����
��+
���
��,���
����
�/
/���	�
-���/��*0
��
�,-��
.��1*
���2��*�
.��1��3*
.�	�
��+
-���/��
����*
 ,*�
�++
��
���
��**
����
���*

�����0
!
-���/
+�*�������
�/
������ �
��,������
��4,��� ���*
���
�����+�+
��
���
����/��
5�+�
6��0

Journey Level Prevailing Wage Rates for the Effective Date: 4/27/2016

������ ��	
� �����	������	���� �	�� ����
	� �������� ����

������ #�/��	�������
7
!��
5��+�������	
8�����* 9�,����
'���� :�;0;� ;

������ �����
8����
���1��* 9�,����
'����
<=���+
��
����> :��0�� �! ;?

https://fortress.wa.gov/lni/wagelookup/prvWagelookup.aspx

1 of 1 4/27/2016 2:09 PM



WEH
Text Box
g. 2nd Amended Agreement w/Service Alternatives, Inc. for Developmental Disability Services









WEH
Text Box
h. 2nd Amended Agreement w/Ambitions Community Support Services of WA, Inc. for Developmental Disabilities Services









WEH
Text Box
i. Amended (A) Agreement w/WA St Dept of Commerce, Community Services & Housing Division











WEH
Text Box
j. 2nd Amended Agreement w/Goodwill Industries for Developmental Disabilities Services









WEH
Text Box
k. 1st Amended Agreement w/S Adolphsen for Parent Coalition









WEH
Text Box
l. 2nd Amended Agreement w/Columbia Industries for Developmental Disabilities Services









WEH
Text Box
m. 2nd Amended Agreement w/Children’s Developmental Center for Developmental Disabilities Services









WEH
Text Box
n. 2nd Amended Agreement w/The Arc of Tri-Cities for Developmental Disabilities Services









WEH
Text Box
o. Purchase of Two Standard Workstations, Laptops & Mobile Printers

















WEH
Text Box
p. 2nd Amended Contract w/Bauder Grading & Excavation for Irrigation System @ Fairgrounds & Vista Park













WEH
Text Box
q. Contract w/Praetorian Group, Inc. for Online Training Courses

















































WEH
Text Box
r. Agreement w/ PricewaterhouseCoopers for Review of Workers’ Compensation & Liability Programs































WEH
Text Box
s. Rescinding Resolution 2016-450, Establishing an Adult Drug Court Coordinator Classification Description & Salary Grade



WEH
Text Box
t. 1st Amended Contract w/Solid Structures for Construction of 3 Storage Sheds





WEH
Text Box
u. Award of Prosser to Grandview Pedestrian & Bicycle Pathway Improvements to Grade Worx





















DATED
PCR 1 PCR 1.1 Application & Maps November 30, 2015
Includes: PCR 1.2 Environmental Checklist Novmeber 30, 2015

PCM 1 PCM 1.1 Staff Memo February 17, 2016
Includes: PCM 1.2 Comprehensive Plan Land Use Map 4.0 July 21, 2015

PCM 1.3 Comprehensive Plan Land Use Map 4.6 July 21, 2015
PCM 1.4 CPA 2016-001 1998 Aerial site Map February 16, 2016
PCM 1.5 CPA 2016-001 2004 Aerial Site Map February 16, 2016
PCM 1.6 CPA 2016-001 2012 Aerial site Map February 16, 2016
PCM 1.7 CPA 2016-001 Comprehensive Plan Site Map February 16, 2016
PCM 1.8 CPA 2016-001 Zoning Designation Site Map February 16, 2016
PCM 1.9 Determination of Non-Significance February 17, 2016

PCM 1.10
Countywide Planning Policies, Item 4-2 Ch. 4 Appendix of 
the Benton County Comprehensive Plan as revised July 21, 2015

PCM 1.11 Notice of Public Hearing March 25, 2016
PCM 1.12 2016 Comp. Plan Amendment Docket January 26, 2016
PCM 1.13 Comments from Fire District #1 February 18, 2016

PCH PCH 1.1 Email from JA Steffans April 11, 2016
Includes: PCH 1.2 Letter from Peggy Loran April 11, 2026

BCCM BCCM 1.1 Board of County Commissioners Agenda Sheet June 7, 2016
Includes: BCCM 1.2 Draft Resolution June 14, 2016

BCCM 1.3 Planning Commission Decision May 12, 2016
BCCM 1.4 Board of County Commissioners Hearing Notice May 25, 2016

BCCH BCCH 1.1
Includes: BCCH 1.2

BCCH 1.3
BCCH 1.4

The Exhibit Numbers are usually found in the Top 
Right Hand Corner of each document.
PCR = Planning Commission Record Exhibits
PCM = Planning Commission Memo Exhibits
PCH = Planning Commission Exhibits submitted
during Hearing
BCCM = Board of County Commissioners Memo 
Exhibits
BCCH = Board of County Commissioners Hearing
Exhibits submitted during Hearing

Board of County Commissioners Staff Memo Exhibit List - June 14, 2016

Board of County Commissioners Staff Memo Exhibit List - June 14, 2016

Planning Commission Staff Memo Exhibit List - (4-12-16 Cancelled) 5-10-16

EXHIBIT LIST FOR 
 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT - CPA 2016-001

Planning Commission Application Exhibit List 

Planning Commission Hearing Exhibit List - 5-10-16

WEH
Text Box
Comprehensive Amendment CPA 2016-001 ~ M Shuttleworth



BCCM 1.1 

AGENDA ITEM:    
MTG. DATE: June 14, 2016 
SUBJECT: Comprehensive Plan 
Amendment CPA 2016-001 
Memo Date:  June 7, 2016 
Prepared By: R.J. Lott 
Checked By: Michael Shuttleworth 

TYPE OF ACTION 
NEEDED 
Execute Contract    
Pass Resolution    X 
Pass Ordinance      
Pass Motion         X 
Other      

Consent Agenda 
Public Hearing     X 
Discussion      
2nd Discussion   
Other      

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
The applicant, Kennewick Game Farm LLC, is requesting an amendment to Benton County 
Comprehensive Plan to change the Land Use Designation of a 40 acre parcel from “Rural 
Lands 5 Acres” to “Heavy Industrial”. The parcel is located in the Southeast Quarter of 
Section 23, Township 8 North, Range 30 East, at 228812 E. Game Farm Road, Kennewick. 

The Planning Commission held its hearing regarding the Benton County Comprehensive 
Plan amendment CPA 2016-001 on May 10, 2016, and after hearing public testimony, 
discussion and consideration, voted to recommend approval of Comprehensive Plan 
Amendment. 

The information presented to the Planning Commission and the Planning Commission 
recommendation is being forwarded to the Board of County Commissioners for final 
decision.  Per BCC 16.14.080(c) an open record hearing has been scheduled for June 14, 
2016, before the Board to take final testimony and action on CPA 2016-001. 

SUMMARY 
Kennewick Game Farm LLC is requesting an amendment to the Benton County 
Comprehensive Plan to change the land use designation of a 40 acre parcel from “Rural 
Lands 5 Acres” to “Heavy Industrial”.  The Planning Commission recommendation for CPA 
2016-001 is being forwarded to the Board of County Commissioners.  The Board of County 
Commissioners will conduct an open record hearing for the application on June 14, 2016. 

RECOMMENDATION 
The Planning Commission is recommending that the Board of County Commissioners 
approve CPA 2016-001 to change the land use designation for Parcel # 1-2380-400-0006-
000, a 40 acre parcel from “Rural Lands 5 Acres” to “Heavy Industrial”.   

MOTION 
I move that Comprehensive Plan Amendment Application # CPA 2016-001 be approved 
changing Land Use Maps 4.0 and 4.6 from Rural Lands 5 to Heavy Industrial and that the 
Board adopt the Planning Commission’s findings of fact and conclusions as our own.  



RESOLUTION 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY PLANNING RE: AN AMENDMENT TO THE BENTON 
COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN CHAPTER 4-LAND USE, MAPS 4.0 AND 4.6, FILE NO. 
CPA 2016-001, APPLICANT: KENNEWICK GAME FARM LLC. 
 
WHEREAS, on June 22, 1998, the Benton County Board of Commissioners adopted the 
Benton County Comprehensive Plan; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the record establishes CPA 2016-001 has been reviewed for compliance with 
the goals and policies of the Benton County Comprehensive Plan and the provisions of 
the Growth Management Act in RCW 36.70A.130; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Benton County utilized the County’s Public Participation Program to engage 
its residents in the review and adoption of the amendments pursuant to RCW 
36.70A.130(2); and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Benton County Planning Commission did conduct a public hearing on 
May 10, 2016,  at 7:00 p.m., in the Planning Annex, 1002 Dudley Avenue, Prosser, WA 
99350, to review and receive written and oral testimony with reference to 
Comprehensive Plan Amendment (CPA 2016-001); and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Benton County Planning Commission at the conclusion of its public 
hearing voted to recommend approval of CPA 2016-001 to the Board of Commissioners; 
and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission forwarded their written findings, conclusions and 
recommendations concerning this matter to the Board of Commissioners; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners did conduct their own public hearing on 
June 14, 2016, in the Commissioner’s Meeting Room, Third Floor, Courthouse, Prosser 
WA 99350, the legal notification was published on June 2, 2016; and copies of the 
notice mailed to those interested parties as noted in the file maintained in the Planning 
Department; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Board finds that proper legal notification, public hearing and review have 
been made; and, 
 
WHEREAS, after consideration of the above mentioned request and review of the Planning 
Commission record, staff analysis and memos, and all written and oral comments 
submitted at the public hearing, the Board of County Commissioners adopts the 
Planning Commission's findings (located in the CPA 2016-001 file in the Planning 
Department) as their own, and it appears to be in the public's best interest to approve 
the request; NOW THEREFORE, 

BCCM 1.2 



BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of County Commissioners hereby amends the Land 
Use Maps 4.0 and 4.6 in Chapter Four of the Comprehensive Plan from Rural Lands 
Five (RL-5) to Heavy Industrial as set forth in Comprehensive Plan Amendment File 
No. CPA 2016-001 and directs Planning Staff to make the approved changes to the 
Benton County Comprehensive Land Use Maps 4.0 and 4.6 .   

Dated this __________ day of _________________________. 

___________________________________ 
Chairman of the Board 

___________________________________ 
Member 

___________________________________ 
Member 

Constituting the Board of County 
Commissioners of Benton County 

Washington 
Attest....................................................... 

Clerk of the Board 



BCCM 1.3







5-12-16



Benton County Planning Department 
Planning Annex, P.O. Box 910, 1002 Dudley Avenue, Prosser WA 99350, Phone: (509) 786-5612 or (509) 736-3086, Fax (509) 786-5629 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

NOTICE OF HEARINGS before the Board of County Commissioners, in the matter of County 
Planning:  

Benton County Comprehensive Plan Amendment - File No. CPA 2016-001, a proposal to change the 
Land Use Designation from Rural Lands 5 Acre to Heavy industrial on a 40 acre parcel.  The proposal 
site is located on at 228812 E. Game Farm Road in the Southwest Quarter of the Southeast Quarter 
in Section 23, Township 8 North, Range 30 East, W.M., one half mile east of the intersection of 
Game Farm Road and SR 397.  Applicant:  Kennewick Game Farm LLC 

Zone Change Request – ZC 2016-001, a proposal to change the Land use zoning from Rural Lands 5 
to Heavy Industrial on a 40 acre parcel.  The proposal site is located on at 228812 E. Game Farm 
Road in the Southwest Quarter of the Southeast Quarter in Section 23, Township 8 North, Range 30 
East, W.M., one half mile east of the intersection of Game Farm Road and SR 397.  Applicant: 
Kennewick Game Farm LLC 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that public comment will be taken on the above proposals on Tuesday, 
June 14, 2016 at 9:00 a.m., Commissioners Meeting Room, Third Floor, Courthouse, Prosser WA.  
CPA 2016-001 & ZC 2016-001 have been reviewed under the requirements of the State 
Environmental Policy Act (RCW 43.21C) and a Determination of Non-Significance (DNS) was issued 
on February 17, 2016. 

Comments regarding the proposed amendments or SEPA determination in regard to the proposal 
may be made at the above-mentioned hearing, submitted in writing to the Benton County Planning 
Department; P.O. Box 910, Prosser, WA 99350; Faxed to (509) 786-5629; or sent via the County 
website at http://tinyurl.com/CPAresidentfeedback.  All comments must be received by 3:00 p.m., 
on Monday, June 13, 2016.  Information regarding the UGA amendment proposal or a copy of the 
DNS may be obtained free of charge by calling the Benton County Planning Department at (509) 
736-3086 (from Tri Cities) or 786-5612 (Prosser) or accessing the website at 
http://tinyurl.com/CPAdocs or http://tinyurl.com/ZCdocs.  Any information submitted to Benton 
County is subject to the public records disclosure law for the State of Washington (RCW Chapter 
42.17) and all other applicable law that may require the release of the documents to the public. 

It is Benton County’s policy that no qualified individual with a disability shall by reason of such 
disability be excluded from participation in public meetings.  If you wish to use auxiliary aids or 
require assistance to comment at this public meeting, please contact the ADA Coordinator or the 
Benton County Planning Department at the above stated phone numbers and/or address no later 
than 48 hours prior to the date of the meeting. The Request for Reasonable Accommodation form is 
available online at www.co.benton.wa.us or from the Planning Department. 

Dated this 25th day of May 2016. 

Shon Small, Chairman 
Board of County Commissioners 

Michael Shuttleworth, Planning Manager 
Benton County Planning Department 

PUBLISH Thursday, June 2, 2016 

BCCM 1.4

http://tinyurl.com/CPAresidentfeedback
http://tinyurl.com/CPAdocs
http://tinyurl.com/ZCdocs
http://www.co.benton.wa.us/


Benton County Planning Department 
 Planning Annex, P.O. Box 910, 1002 Dudley Avenue, Prosser WA 99350, Phone: (509) 786-5612 or (509) 736-3086, Fax (509) 786-5629 

DATE: FEBRUARY 17, 2016 

TO: BENTON COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 

FROM: BENTON COUNTY PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

RE: CPA 2016-001 - A PROPOSAL TO CHANGE THE LAND USE DESIGNATION FROM 
RURAL LANDS FIVE TO HEAVY INDUSTRIAL 

APPLICANT: KENNEWICK GAME FARM LLC, 228812 E. GAME FARM RD. KENNEWICK, WA 
99338 

PROPOSAL REQUEST: A proposal to change the land use designation in the 
Comprehensive Plan from Rural Lands 5 to Heavy Industrial on a 40 acre parcel.  

PURPOSE OF THE PLAN AMENDMENT: The purpose of the proposed amendment is 
to amend the land use designation to be consistent with the adjacent Heavy Industrial 
designation bordering the property along its North and East boundary and to allow the 
current use of the parcel to be expanded. (PCM 1.2 through 1.8) 

LEGAL NOTICE PUBLISHED:  The legal notice required by Benton County Code, for 
the Planning Commission's Open Record Hearing on the proposal Comprehensive Plan 
Amendment CPA 2016-001, was published in the Tri-City Herald on March 31, 2016. 
The legal notices were mailed to interested parties on the Public Participation (PPP) 
list and sent electronically to those on the PPP email list. The legal notification 
of the 2016 Comprehensive Plan Amendment Docket was published in the Tri-
City Herald on January 26, 2016. 

STATE ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY ACT: 
CPA 2016-001 has been reviewed under the requirements of the State Environmental 
Policy Act, as amended and a Determination of Non-Significance (DNS) was issued on 
February 17, 2016. Copies of the Environmental Checklist (PCR 1.2), the Determination 
of Non-Significance (PCM 1.9), and the comments received from reviewing agencies are 
attached to this memorandum. 

PROPOSED PROPERTY LOCATION: 
The parcel is located at 228812 E. Game Farm Road in the Southwest Quarter of 
Southeast Quarter of Section 23, Township 8 North, Range 30 East. W.M., one half mile 
east of the intersection of Game Farm Rd. and SR 397. 

LAND USE: 

PCM 1.1 



The subject parcel is currently developed with three residences, accessory structures 
and agricultural uses, including crop circles and the storage of agricultural products and 
equipment.  The site is also used for game bird production which includes the raising 
and shipping of game birds to various locations. 

ZONING: 
The subject property is zoned Rural Lands 5. A re-zone of this property is being 
reviewed by the planning staff and a recommendation by the Planning Commission is 
sought by the applicant for a zone change to Heavy Industrial. 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN LAND USE DESIGNATION: 
The Benton County Comprehensive Plan designates the subject property as Rural Lands 
5 and is shown on the Comprehensive Plan Land Use Map 4.6, in Chapter Four, the 
Land Use Element. (PCM 1.3) 

SECTION OF THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN TO BE AMENDED:  
Revise maps 4.0 and 4.6 in Chapter Four (PCM 1.2 and 1.3), the Land Use Element of 
the Comprehensive Plan, and if necessary other tables and text in the Plan that may 
refer to the current use of the property as a Rural Lands 5 designation. 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN CRITERIA: 
Chapter One Appendix Page 5 to the Benton County Comprehensive Plan, provides the 
following for evaluating amendments to the Comprehensive Plan: 

3) Criteria against which the proposed amendment must be evaluated and found
to be in substantial compliance for approval: 

a. An amendment is necessary to resolve inconsistencies within the
County Comprehensive Plan, or with other city plans or ordinances with 
which the county has no objection; 
b. Conditions have so changed since the adoption of the county plan or
ordinances that the existing adopted provision is inappropriate; 
c. The proposed amendment is consistent with the overall intent of the
goals, map, and Rural Element of the county plan; 
d. The proposed amendment is consistent with Chapter 36.70A RCW, the
County-wide Planning Policies, and Plan policies; 
e. For an amendment to the Comprehensive Plan Map, the proposed
designation is adjacent to property having a similar and compatible 
designation, or the subject property is of sufficient size, or other 
conditions are present, to locate development or otherwise mitigate 
potential incompatibilities to insignificant levels; 
f. Environmental impacts have been disclosed and measures imposed to
either avoid or mitigate said impacts; 



g. Potential ramifications of the proposed amendment to other
Comprehensive Plan Elements and supporting documents have been 
considered and addressed; 
h. As appropriate, where an amendment of the Comprehensive Plan is
approved by the Board of Commissioners, and a subsequent rezone or 
amendment to development regulations is required, the planning 
commission may consider them and make recommendations to the Board 
for consideration concurrent with the final approval of the comprehensive 
plan amendment. 

STAFF REVIEW AND ANALYSIS: 
1. An amendment is necessary to resolve inconsistencies within the
County Comprehensive Plan, or with other city plans or ordinances with 
which the county has no objection;  

When the County’s Comprehensive Plan was adopted in 1998, the subject parcel 
was designated as Agricultural. The zoning on this parcel was changed in 2011 to 
Rural Lands 5 to reflect their designation within the County's Comprehensive 
Plan. The current use of the property has been existing since at least 2002 
according to aerial photographs. An expansion of the uses existing on the parcel 
requires a Heavy Industrial designation. 

2. Conditions have so changed since the adoption of the county plan or
ordinances that the existing adopted provision is inappropriate; 

The only condition near the site that has changed is the construction and 
extension of Piert Rd. and SR 397 to better serve the industrial uses in the area. 
The newer portion of SR 397 was constructed by the County at a cost of about 9 
million dollars to provide an improved infrastructure to connect the industrial 
uses in the area to Interstate 82. After the road was constructed, it became a 
state highway and is now maintained by the Washington State Department of 
Transportation. 

3. The proposed amendment is consistent with the overall intent of the
goals, map, and Land Use and Rural Elements of the county plan; 

The proposed amendment would not be inconsistent with the Kennewick-Finley 
rural planning area of the Comprehensive Plan. Heavy Industrial use is 
characteristic and consistent with the surrounding lands to the North and East of 
the site. The loss of 40 acres of Rural Lands 5 designation in this area is not 
significant. A Comprehensive Plan amendment in 2009 had a loss of 
approximately 52 acres of Heavy Industrial land in the area to a designation of 
Rural Lands 5. 



4. The proposed amendment is consistent with Chapter 36.70A RCW, the
Benton County-wide Planning Policies, and Plan policies; 

The proposed amendment is not inconsistent with Chapter 36.70A RCW, or the 
Benton Countywide Planning Policies or the Benton County Comprehensive Plan 
(PCM 1.10).  The Benton County Comprehensive Plan provides the following in 
reference to land use. “To provide, consistent with the adopted goals and 
objectives of each rural community relative to quality of life and lifestyle, a 
diversity of land uses and an appropriate level of essential public and private 
sector services, while minimizing conflicts between different land uses to ensure 
the highest degree of public health, safety and general welfare without unduly 
jeopardizing the rights of the individual.” 

5. For an amendment to the Comprehensive Plan Map, the proposed
designation is adjacent to property having a similar and compatible 
designation, or the subject property is of sufficient size, or other conditions 
are present, to locate development or otherwise mitigate potential 
incompatibilities to insignificant levels;  

The parcel proposed for amendment shares a boundary to the North and East 
with other Heavy Industrial Zoned land uses of approximately 1200 acres.   

6. Environmental impacts have been disclosed and measures imposed to
either avoid or mitigate said impacts; 

This proposal was reviewed under the requirements of the State 
Environmental Policy Act (SEPA) (RCW 43.13C) and a determination of non-
significance (PCM 1.9) was issued on February 17, 2016. Additional SEPA 
review may be required for specific project actions that may be proposed as a 
result of this proposal, if it is approved.  

7. Potential ramifications of the proposed amendment to other
Comprehensive Plan Elements and supporting documents have been 
considered and addressed; 

There are no identifiable potentially significant negative ramifications to other 
comprehensive plan elements. 

8. As appropriate, where an amendment of the Comprehensive Plan is
approved by the Board of Commissioners, and a subsequent rezone or 
amendment to development regulations is required, the planning commission 
may consider them and make recommendations to the Board for 
consideration concurrent with the final approval of the comprehensive plan 
amendment.  



Yes, a rezone is required, and has been submitted. A recommendation by the 
Planning Commission for the rezone is also required. 

9. Based upon the information available, staff believes that proposed
amendment CPA 2016-001 meets or is consistent with the Benton County 
Comprehensive Plan goals and policies.  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission forward to the Board of County 
Commissioners a recommendation to approve amendment CPA-2016-001.   



395

395

397
22

14

221

221

241

24

24

225

240

14

240

240

397

224

240

224

82

82

82

82

82

182

82

82

182

T
ow

ns
hi

p 
4

T
ow

ns
hi

p 
5

Range 24

T
ow

ns
hi

p 
6

Range 25

T
ow

ns
hi

p 
7

T
ow

ns
hi

p 
8

T
ow

ns
hi

p 
9

Range 26 Range 27

T
ow

ns
hi

p 
10

T
ow

ns
hi

p 
11

T
ow

ns
hi

p 
12

T
ow

nship 12
T

ow
nship 13

T
ow

ns
hi

p 
14

T
ow

nship 14

Range 24 Range 25 Range 26 Range 27

Range 28 Range 29 Range 30 Range 31

T
ow

nship 4
T

ow
nship 5

T
ow

nship 6
T

ow
nship 7

T
ow

nship 8
T

ow
nship 9

Range 28 Range 29

T
ow

nship 10
T

ow
nship 11

Range 30
T

ow
ns

hi
p 

13
Range 31

LAND USE MAP 4.0

Benton County does not warrant, guarantee or accept liability for accuracy, precision or completeness of any information shown hereon or for any inferences made therefrom.  Any use made of this information is 
solely at the risk of the user.  Benton County makes no warranty, expressed or implied, and any oral or written statement by any employee of Benton County or agents thereof to the contrary is void and ultra vires.

Adopted by Res #'s 2015-516 
and 2015-517 
Dated July 21, 2015

0.0 1.0 2.0
Miles

BENTON COUNTY
State of Washington

Planning Department

Legend

URBAN GROWTH AREA

RURAL LANDS 1-3

RURAL LANDS 1

RURAL LANDS 5

RURAL LANDS 20

COMMUNITY CENTER

COMMUNITY COMMERCIAL

INTERCHANGE COMMERCIAL

GENERAL COMMERCIAL

LIGHT INDUSTRIAL

HEAVY INDUSTRIAL

PUBLIC

OPEN SPACE CONSERVATION

GMA AGRICULTURAL

HANFORD

HANFORD REACH

PCM 1. 2



395

395

397

240

397

0.0 0.5 1.0

Miles

Legend

City Limits

URBAN GROWTH AREA

RURAL LANDS 1-3

RURAL LANDS 5

RURAL LANDS 20

COMMUNITY CENTER

COMMUNITY COMMERCIAL

GENERAL COMMERCIAL

LIGHT INDUSTRIAL

HEAVY INDUSTRIAL

GMA AG

PUBLIC

LAND USE MAP 4.6

Dated October 5, 2015

KENNEWICK-FINLEY

PLANNING AREA

Finley

Kennewick

R30 R31R29 R30

T
8
  
 T

9

T
8
  
 T

9
T

7
  
 T

8

T
7
  
 T

8

R30 R31R29 R30

Benton County does not warrant, guarantee or accept liability for accuracy, precision or completeness of any information shown hereon or for any inferences made therefrom.  Any use made of this information is
solely at the risk of the user.  Benton County makes no warranty, expressed or implied, and any oral or written statement by any employee of Benton County or agents thereof to the contrary is void and ultra vires.

BENTON COUNTY
State of Washington

Planning Department

Adopted by Res # 2015-517
Dated July 21, 2015

PCM 1.3



Benton County
Planning

Department

 MAP FOR CPA 2016-001 REQUEST
Map Created:  February 16, 2016

Orthophoto Flown:  1998

PCM 1.4

Benton County does not warrant, guarantee, or accept liability for accuracy, precision or 
completeness of any information shown hereon or for any inferences made therefrom. Any 
use made of this information is solely at the risk of the user.  Benton County makes no 
warranty, expressed or implied, and any oral or written statement by any employee of Benton 
County or agents thereof to the contrary is void and ultra vires.  The information shown herein 
is a product of the Benton County Geographic Information Systems, and is prepared for 
presentation purposes only. 

SITE



Benton County
Planning

Department

 MAP FOR CPA 2016-001 REQUEST
Map Created:  February 16, 2016 

Orthophoto Flown:  2004

PCM 1.5

Benton County does not warrant, guarantee, or accept liability for accuracy, precision or 
completeness of any information shown hereon or for any inferences made therefrom. Any 
use made of this information is solely at the risk of the user.  Benton County makes no 
warranty, expressed or implied, and any oral or written statement by any employee of Benton 
County or agents thereof to the contrary is void and ultra vires.  The information shown herein 
is a product of the Benton County Geographic Information Systems, and is prepared for 
presentation purposes only. 

SITE



Benton County
Planning

Department

 MAP FOR CPA 2016-001 REQUEST
Map Created:  February 16, 2016

Orthophoto Flown:  2012

PCM 1.6

Benton County does not warrant, guarantee, or accept liability for accuracy, precision or 
completeness of any information shown hereon or for any inferences made therefrom. Any 
use made of this information is solely at the risk of the user.  Benton County makes no 
warranty, expressed or implied, and any oral or written statement by any employee of Benton 
County or agents thereof to the contrary is void and ultra vires.  The information shown herein 
is a product of the Benton County Geographic Information Systems, and is prepared for 
presentation purposes only. 

SITE



Benton County
Planning

Department

COMP. PLAN MAP FOR CPA 2016-001
Map Created:  February 16, 2016

PCM 1.7

Benton County does not warrant, guarantee, or accept liability for accuracy, precision or 
completeness of any information shown hereon or for any inferences made therefrom. Any 
use made of this information is solely at the risk of the user.  Benton County makes no 
warranty, expressed or implied, and any oral or written statement by any employee of Benton 
County or agents thereof to the contrary is void and ultra vires.  The information shown herein 
is a product of the Benton County Geographic Information Systems, and is prepared for 
presentation purposes only. 

Comprehensive Plan 

HEAVY INDUSTRIAL

RURAL LANDS 5

SITE

djh2
Rectangle



Benton County
Planning

Department

 ZONING MAP FOR CPA 2016-001 
Map Created:  February 16, 2016

 
PCM 1.8

Benton County does not warrant, guarantee, or accept liability for accuracy, precision or 
completeness of any information shown hereon or for any inferences made therefrom. Any 
use made of this information is solely at the risk of the user.  Benton County makes no 
warranty, expressed or implied, and any oral or written statement by any employee of Benton 
County or agents thereof to the contrary is void and ultra vires.  The information shown herein 
is a product of the Benton County Geographic Information Systems, and is prepared for 
presentation purposes only. 

BENTON COUNTY ZONING

HEAVY INDUSTRIAL

RURAL LANDS 5

SITE

djh2
Rectangle



DETERMINATION OF NON-SIGNIFICANCE 

Description of proposal: CPA 2016-001 - A proposal for a Comprehensive Plan amendment 
for a change in the land use designation from Rural Lands Five (RL-5) to Heavy Industrial (HI) 
on a 1.5 acre parcel. 

Proponent  Gene Mercer File No. EA 2015-030 
228808 E. Game Farm Road 
Kennewick WA 99337 

Location of proposal, including street address, if any: The proposal is located in the Finley 
rural area, in the Southwest Quarter of Section 23, Township 8 North, Range 30 East, W.M. 

Lead agency     BENTON COUNTY 
The lead agency for this proposal has determined that it does not have a probable 

significant adverse impact on the environment.  An environmental impact statement (EIS) is not 
required under RCW 43.21C.030(2)(c).  This decision was made after review of a completed 
environmental checklist and other information on file with the lead agency.  This information is 
available to the public on request. 

This DNS is issued under 197-11-340(2); the lead agency will not act on this proposal for 14 days 
from the date below.  Comments must be submitted by March 2, 2016. 

Responsible Official: Michael Shuttleworth 
Position/Title: Planning Manager 
Address: P.O. Box 910, Prosser WA 99350 

• Email planning.department@co.benton.wa.us
• Phone/Fax: (509)786-5612/(509) 786-5629;

DATE OF ISSUE:  February 17, 2016 Signature:/s/ Michael Shuttleworth 

THERE IS NO AGENCY APPEAL. 

DISTRIBUTION: 
Applicant 
News Media  
Benton County Building Office 
Dept. of Natural Resources-Olympia 
Dept. of Natural Resources -Ellensburg 
Benton Clean Air Authority 
Bureau of Reclamation 
Benton County Public Works 
Benton Franklin Dist. Health Dept. 
Columbia Irrigation District 
Department of Transportation 
Washington State Department of Health 
Department of Ecology - Olympia  
Department of Ecology - Yakima 

Fire District #1 
Fire Marshal 
Bureau of Land Management 
Department of Fish and Wildlife  
Office of Arch. & Historic Preservation 
Futurewise 
Dept. of Commerce 

PCM 1.9

mailto:planning.department@co.benton.wa.us


Chapter Four Appendix 

Benton County Comprehensive Plan Appendix  41 

ITEM 4-2 

BENTON COUNTY-WIDE PLANNING POLICIES 

County-wide planning policy is a written policy statement or statements used solely for establishing 
a county-wide framework from which county and city comprehensive plans are developed and 
adopted.  This framework will insure that city and county comprehensive plans are consistent as 
required by the Growth Management Act. 

POLICIES TO IMPLEMENT RCW 36.70A.110; RESHB 1025 Section 2,(3)a. 

Policy #1: The Comprehensive Plans of Benton County and each of the cities therein shall be 
prepared and adopted with the objective to facilitate economic prosperity by accommodating growth 
consistent with the following: 

1. Urban Growth.  Encourage development in urban areas where adequate public facilities exist or
can be provided in a cost efficient manner. 

2. Avoid sprawl.  Avoid the inappropriate conversion of undeveloped land into low density
development, lacking adequate services, injurious to ground and surface water quality, destructive 
to the area's agricultural lands base, and less than cost effective relative to public service costs.  

3. Transportation.  Encourage efficient multi-modal transportation systems that are based on regional
priorities and coordinated with county and city comprehensive plans. 

4. Property rights.  Private property rights shall not be taken for public use without just compensation
having been made.  The property rights of land owners shall be protected from arbitrary and 
discriminatory actions. 

5. Permits.  Applications for permits shall be processed in a timely and fair manner to ensure
predictability. 

6. Natural resource industries.  Maintain and enhance natural resource-based industries, including
productive agricultural, fisheries and mineral industries.  Encourage the conservation of productive 
agricultural lands and discourage incompatible uses. 

7. Open space and recreation.  Encourage the retention of open space and the development of
recreational opportunities, conserve fish and wildlife habitat, increase access to natural resource 
lands and water, and develop parks. 

8. Environment.  Protect the environment and enhance the region's high quality of life, including air
and water quality, and the availability of water. 

9. Citizen participation and coordination.  Encourage the involvement of citizens in the planning
process and ensure coordination between communities and jurisdictions to reconcile conflicts. 

10. Public facilities and services.  Ensure that those public facilities and services necessary to support
development shall be adequate to serve development at the time the development is available for 
occupancy and use without decreasing current service levels below locally established minimum 

PCM 1.10 



Chapter Four Appendix 

Benton County Comprehensive Plan Appendix  42 

standards. With the exception of water, sewer, streets and power services, which shall be available 
at the time of occupancy, the term "adequate" shall be defined as either available at the time of 
occupancy, or shown on the current C.I.P. as a funded project within six years. 

11. Historic preservation.  Identify and encourage the preservation of lands, sites, and structures that
have historical or archaeological significance. 

POLICIES FOR PROMOTION OF CONTIGUOUS AND ORDERLY DEVELOPMENT AND THE 
PROVISION OF URBAN SERVICES TO SUCH DEVELOPMENT; RESHB 1025 SEC.2, (3)b. 

Policy #2:  County-wide projected population shall be allocated among jurisdictions through the use 
of any or all of the following factors applied to each jurisdiction: 

a. Documented historical growth rates over the last decade, the last 2 decades, and the last 2
years.

b. Current growth rates.

c. Developing or current planning programs which a jurisdiction has, and which identify
quantitative increases in business and industry development, and housing construction
activity.

d. School enrollments over 2 decades, and within the last 2 years.

e. Pending development proposals (applications) which would add either jobs or new housing
units.

f. Intangibles.

Policy #3:  The locating of urban growth areas within the county shall be accomplished through the 
use of accepted planning practices which provide sufficient land and service capacity to meet 
projected populations at urban densities and service standards within the cities, and urban densities 
for those portions of the county located within the urban growth areas.  Such planning practices 
include those on ATTACHMENT A (attached). 

Policy #4:  That Urban Growth Areas of each city shall be based upon official and accepted 
population projections for minimum 20 year periods.  The gross undeveloped and underdeveloped 
acreage within the city limits and the Urban Growth Area shall be sufficient to meet all the land 
requirements, including community and essential public facilities, of the population projection, 
including the need to prevent inflation of land cost due to a too limited land supply.     

a. The jurisdictions within the county shall use a uniform formula for identifying the land
area necessary per capita for each community.   Each jurisdiction's population projection
shall be multiplied by its gross per capita land area requirement, which in the aggregate
will define total land needs within the Urban Growth Area (UGA).

The uniform formula is as follows: 



Chapter Four Appendix 

Benton County Comprehensive Plan Appendix  43 

A + B + C + D + E + F + G + H + I + J + K = acreage/per capita (or acreage per dwelling unit 
if per capita is divided by average household size) where: 

A = residential land per capita; (or DU) 
B = parks and recreational area per capita; 
C = area required for public facilities (fire stations, jails, etc.,) per capita; 
D= area required for schools per capita; 
E =  commercial area per capita, or per employee; 
F = industrial/manufacturing area per capita; 
G = open space (golf courses, etc.) per capita; 
H = public service lands required for transportation network, easements and R.O.W.s per 

DU; 
I* = use 70% build-out for all residential lands; 
J = add 25% to the total of A Through I for land supply/demand balance; 
K = land credit for undevelopable lands i.e. Critical Areas including steep slopes, 

wetlands, habitat, etc. within the UGA. 

* The same factor should be used for all jurisdictions.

Policy #5 :  That within the urban growth area urban uses shall be concentrated in and adjacent to 
existing urban services or where they are shown on a Capital Improvement Plan to be available within 
6 years.  

Policy #6:  That cities limit the extension of service district boundaries and water and sewer 
infrastructure to areas within each jurisdiction's urban growth area of its adopted Comprehensive 
Plan. 

Policy #7: Within each Comprehensive Plan, the Land Use Plan for urban growth areas shall 
designate urban densities and indicate the general locations of greenbelt and open space areas.  To 
the extent made practical by the natural features of the land form, open spaces and greenbelt shall 
be contiguous across jurisdictional lines, so as to enable their use as linked and contiguous 
recreational resources including parks, and bike and riding paths. 

Policy #8: Wherever possible, given consideration of all other variables, such as existing unused 
service infrastructure, the placement of an urban growth line into an area of existing or potential 
intensive commercial agriculture shall be avoided, unless an adequate open space buffer within the 
urban growth area is provided. 

Policy #9:  The appropriate directions for the expansion of urban growth areas are those which are 
unincorporated lands substantially engrossed by urban development; areas with existing service 
infrastructure; lands adjacent to corporate limits and confined on the other side by major features 
such as highways; and existing rural residential development characterized by compromised 
agricultural productivity; average lot sizes less than 10 acres; and existing streets and utility services. 

Policy #10: All policies within each jurisdiction's Comprehensive Plans, required by ESHB 2929, 
shall be modified to be consistent with and implement adopted County-wide Policies.  
POLICIES FOR SITING PUBLIC FACILITIES OF A COUNTY-WIDE OR STATE-WIDE NATURE; 
RESHB 1025 SEC.2,(3)c. 



Chapter Four Appendix 

Benton County Comprehensive Plan Appendix  44 

Policy #11:  The County and cities within, along with public participation shall develop a cooperative 
regional process to site essential public facilities of regional and statewide importance.  The objective 
of the process shall be to ensure that such facilities are located so as to protect environmental quality, 
optimize access and usefulness to all jurisdictions, and equitably distribute economic 
benefits/burdens through out the region or county. 

At the County-wide and multi-county level, the following actions should be accomplished: 

a. Develop a uniform siting procedure which enables selection of optimum project sites
and appropriate size and scale relative to intended benefit area.

Policy #12:  Support the existing solid waste program that promotes and maintains a high level of 
public health and safety, protects the natural and human environment of Benton County and 
encourages public involvement by securing representation of the public in the planning process. 

Policy #13:  Encourage and expand coordination and communication among all jurisdictions and 
solid waste agencies/firms in Benton and Franklin Counties in order to develop consistent and cost-
effective programs that avoid duplication of effort and gaps in program activities. 

a. Utilize the existing Benton-Franklin Solid Waste Advisory Committee.

POLICIES FOR COUNTY-WIDE TRANSPORTATION FACILITIES AND STRATEGIES; RESHB 1025 
SEC.2,(3)d. 

Policy #14:  Maintain active county-city participation in the Regional Transportation Policy 
Organization in order to facilitate city, county, and state coordination in planning regional 
transportation facilities and infrastructure improvements to serve essential public facilities including 
Port District facilities and properties.  

POLICIES THAT CONSIDER THE NEED FOR AFFORDABLE HOUSING, SUCH AS HOUSING FOR 
ALL ECONOMIC SEGMENTS OF THE POPULATION AND PARAMETERS FOR ITS DISTRIBUTION; 
RESHB 1025 SEC.2,(3) e. 

Policy #15:  New housing within urban growth areas shall be compatible in character and standards 
with that of the adjacent city area. 

Policy #16:  That site constructed, modular and manufactured housing shall be recognized as needed 
and functional housing types. 

Policy #17: The County and cities within shall work together to provide housing for all economic 
segments of the population.  All jurisdictions shall seek to create the conditions necessary for the 
construction of affordable housing, at the appropriate densities within the cities and County. The 
following actions should be accomplished: 

a. Jointly quantify and project total county-wide housing needs by income level and housing
type (i.e. rental, ownership, senior, farm worker housing, group housing.) 



Chapter Four Appendix 

Benton County Comprehensive Plan Appendix  45 

b. Establish a mechanism whereby the housing efforts/programs of each jurisdiction address
the projected county-wide need. 

c. Address the affordable housing needs of very low, low and moderate income households,
and special needs individuals through the Comprehensive Housing affordability Strategy 
(CHAS).  

d. Develop design standards for implementation within the Comprehensive Plan with special
attention to be given to the residential needs of low to moderate income families. 

POLICIES FOR JOINT COUNTY AND CITY PLANNING WITHIN URBAN GROWTH AREAS; RESHB 
1025 SEC.2, (3)f. 

Policy #18: Urban growth areas may include territory located outside of a city only if such territory 
already is characterized by urban growth or is adjacent to territory already characterized by urban 
growth.  Within urban growth areas, only urban development may occur.  For the purposes of 
locating urban growth areas, and permitting new development within them, "Urban" is defined as:  

a. having dedicated and improved (surfaced) streets, with dimension, design and construction
standards for new development determined by "joint city/county standards" and;

b. For new development, road, street and intersection right-of way widths located and sized to
accommodate projected local and regional average daily traffic (ADT) as determined by the
Land Use Plans Transportation Elements and, where relevant, projections of the BFRC
Regional System and;

c. having either public sewer or water service, with additional service requirements (e.g.
standards of Policy #19), for new development consistent with "joint/city county standards."

Policy #19: To encourage logical expansions of corporate boundaries into urban growth areas, and 
to enable the most cost efficient expenditure of public funds for the provision of urban services into 
newly annexed areas; the County and each city shall jointly develop and implement development, 
land division and building standards, and coordinated permit procedures for the review and 
permitting of new subdivisions within Urban Growth Areas. 

a. The joint standards developed, but never adopted, by the County and the cities of Richland
and Kennewick in 1985 shall be used as the basis for the new standards. 

b. Standards for the following shall be developed and adopted:

1. Street Locations, both major and secondary;
2. Street R.O.W. widths;
3. Street widths;
4. Curbs and gutters;
5. Sidewalks for secondary streets only;
6. Road construction standards ;
7. Cul De Sacs, location and dimensions;
8. Storm Drainage facilities, quantity, quality and discharge locations;
9. Street lights, conduit, fixtures, locations;



Chapter Four Appendix 

Benton County Comprehensive Plan Appendix  46 

10. Sewer, septic regulations, private sewer, dry sewer facilities;
11. Water, pipe sizes, locations, construction standards;
12. Fire protection, station locations, fire flows, uniform codes;
13. All building requirements;
14. Subdivision and platting requirements (in accord with chapter RCW 58.17) including

parks and open space;
15. Mobile home and manufactured home regulations;
16. Zoning Ordinances: permitted uses in Urban Growth Areas, setbacks; building

heights, lot coverage etc.

c. As either an alternative, or adjunct to a) above, a city and the County may choose to enter
into an interlocal agreement whereby the application of development standards, and the 
authorities and functions of permit review, inspection and enforcement are assigned.  

POLICIES FOR COUNTY-WIDE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND EMPLOYMENT; RESHB 1025 
SEC.2,(3)g. 

Policy #20: Consistent with the protection of public health, safety, and welfare, and the use of natural 
resources on a long-term sustainable basis, the ability of service capacity to accommodate demands, 
and the expressed desires of each community, Comprehensive Plans shall jointly and individually 
support the county and region's economic prosperity in order to promote employment and economic 
opportunity for all citizens.    

AN ANALYSIS OF THE FISCAL IMPACT. RESHB 1025 2,(3)h. 

Policy #21: Where Capital Improvement Plans and Land Use Plans, involve land areas within, or 
tributary to land within the urban growth areas, the County and Cities, individually and jointly, shall 
routinely conduct fiscal analyses which identify and refine the most cost effective provision of 
regional and local public services and infrastructure over the long term.  This should be accomplished 
through actions including the following: 

a. City's six year C.I.P.s for streets, water, and sewer should show infrastructure sized to
accommodate build-out of service areas within the 20 year urban growth area, at a minimum.

b. Construction design and placement standards for roads, intersections and streets (with
provisions for storm water conveyance), and sewer, water and lighting infrastructure, should
be determined based upon an analysis which identifies the lowest public expenditure over
extended periods of time. Utilities should be incorporated into such analyses.

c. Build out scenarios should be factored into school, fire and police service demand
projections.

ATTACHMENT A 

LOCATE URBAN GROWTH AREAS 

Population Projections 

1. Review and comment on preliminary OFM population projections due in Dec. 91.



Chapter Four Appendix 

Benton County Comprehensive Plan Appendix  47 

2. Legislative bodies of each jurisdiction to review OFM population projections.
3. Update the existing land use inventory to reflect current conditions (use county GIS when

available in 3-92, to provide county-wide land use inventory).

4. GMC derives formula for allocation of OFM population projections -sends formula to
individual jurisdictions via the BCPPC.

-BCPPC sends to indiv. jurisdictions legislative bodies for review
-BOCC takes action on pop. allocation

Land Use Element Map 

1. Identify accepted uniform planning criteria used for locating Urban Growth Areas:

-natural physical barriers and roads
-existing service capacity (supply/deficit)
-projected service capacity (new supply)
-planning objectives (GMA req.) and;

2. Uniform criteria for insuring adequate land supply within Urban Growth Areas:

-enable growth without creating excess demand for services, congestion etc.,
-discourage sprawl without grossly inflating land costs;

3. Identify uniform, established candidates for the supply of developable land within the Urban
Growth areas:

-vacant, under utilized, partially utilized

4. Identify uniform, established candidates for lands to be excluded from development, such as
lands:

-needed for R.O.W.
-hazardous, critical, open space etc.,
-too costly to provide services
-to be zoned agricultural with Transfers of Density Rights (TDRs)

5. Map existing public, private and semi-public service district boundaries and;

6. Inventory all existing capital facilities for public, private and semi-public service
providers, and transportation network, identify existing capacity:

water sewer 
fire police 
schools ports 
parks libraries 
hospital communications 

7. Confer with BFRC to establish current level transportation data re: inventory



Chapter Four Appendix 

Benton County Comprehensive Plan Appendix  48 

-each jurisdiction to build on BFRC transportation data; define local street conditions, 
capacities, programmed and needed improvements. 

8. Inventory housing stock - identify existing supply/demand ratio by housing.

9. Using Population Projections per jurisdiction, accomplish the following:

-project new housing mix/type and occupancy rates;
-identify projected gross new demands for services identified in item #5, above;
- equate existing services infrastructure capabilities and C.I. P.s with gross new demands;
-identify new C.I.s, (supplies of water, sewer, school, rec. fac. etc.,) necessary to meet
gross new   demands;
-survey options to meet gross new service with cost effectiveness on essential services (i.e.,
water and sewer, road maintenance as a priority) and; type, identify present need (use
Census);
-with the cost effectiveness of meeting other services demands as a consideration.

10. Contact each utility purveyor.  Solicit participation on LUE advisory committees on relevant
issues.

11. Inventory facilities/capacities of existing utility services, identify current plans for new
facilities and capacities including but not limited to electric, telecommunications, natural gas.
Rely on BFRC data.

12. lands such as: utility and transportation corridors, land fills, sewage treatment facilities,
recreation, schools etc.,

-integrate existing information from comp. plans, needs assessments, pop. projections, into
one joint list of needed public lands;
-county must work with state and cities to identify areas of shared need and shall prepare a
prioritized list with estimated acquisition dates;
-capital acquisition budget for each jurisdiction with jointly agreed upon priorities and
schedule. *

13. Identify Open Space Corridors within and between Urban Growth Areas, including:
-lands used or designated as recreational, wildlife habitat, trails, and "critical areas" as defined
in sec .3
-optional: develop a mechanism to purchase fee simple or lesser interests in these open spaces
using funds authorized by RCW 84.34.230 *
-develop an acquisitions list for those lands with critical resources imposing extreme
constraints on development *

14. Draft a procedure, including siting criteria, for locating/approving essential public facilities.

-review list of essential facilities provided by OFM with the objective to identify those suitable
for location in urban vs rural areas.

15. Consistent with the revised Policies in the Comp. Plan Texts, integrate population projections,



Chapter Four Appendix 

Benton County Comprehensive Plan Appendix  49 

land use and capital facilities inventory data, lands necessary for new capital facilities, and 
total land requirements to support population projections (including sec. 15 lands, lands for 
essential facilities RESHB sec 1), densities, open space and critical/natural areas (set asides) 
into new 20 year Urban Growth Areas. 

16. Review of Urban Growth Areas by each jurisdiction's legislative body.

17. BOCC adopts Urban Growth Areas, then;

PREPARE DRAFT LAND USE MAP 

Map Designations 

1. Prepare Draft Land Use Map with general distribution, location and extent of land uses, and:

-Urban Growth Areas and Rural Lands;
-Open Space;
-Public Facilities and lands;
-population densities;
-building intensities;
-est. future pop.  densities (multiply av. bldg. densities X pers/household re: page 57 of 1985
Comp. Plan.(update with 1990 census)

* not necessary for locating urban growth boundaries



Benton County Planning Department 
Planning Annex, P.O. Box 910, 1002 Dudley Avenue, Prosser WA 99350, Phone: (509) 786-5612 or (509) 736-3086, Fax (509) 786-5629 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

NOTICE OF HEARINGS before the Benton County Planning Commission, in the matter of County 
Planning:  

Benton County Comprehensive Plan Amendment - File No. CPA 2016-001, a proposal to change the 
Land Use Designation from Rural Lands 5 Acre to Heavy industrial on a 40 acre parcel.  The proposal 
site is located on at 228812 E. Game Farm Road in the Southwest Quarter of the Southeast Quarter 
in Section 23, Township 8 North, Range 30 East, W.M., one half mile east of the intersection of 
Game Farm Road and SR 397.  Applicant:  Kennewick Game Farm LLC 

Zone Change Request – ZC 2016-001, a proposal to change the Land use zoning from Rural Lands 5 
to Heavy Industrial on a 40 acre parcel.  The proposal site is located on at 228812 E. Game Farm 
Road in the Southwest Quarter of the Southeast Quarter in Section 23, Township 8 North, Range 30 
East, W.M., one half mile east of the intersection of Game Farm Road and SR 397.  Applicant: 
Kennewick Game Farm LLC 

Countywide Planning Policies – Amendments are being made to the Benton County Countywide 
Planning Policies (CWPPs) adopted in February of 1993.  The Countywide Planning Policies are 
written policy statements used solely for establishing a countywide framework from which county 
and city comprehensive plans are developed and adopted.  

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that public comment will be taken on the above proposals on Tuesday, 
April 12, 2016 at 7:00 p.m., in the Benton County Planning Annex Hearing Room at 1002 Dudley 
Avenue in Prosser.  CPA 2016-001 & ZC 2016-001 have been reviewed under the requirements of 
the State Environmental Policy Act (RCW 43.21C) and a Determination of Non-Significance (DNS) 
was issued on February 17, 2016. 

Comments regarding the proposals or the SEPA determination may be made at the above-mentioned 
hearing, submitted in writing to the Benton County Planning Department; P.O. Box 910, Prosser, WA 
99350; Faxed to (509) 786-5629; or sent via the County website at 
http://tinyurl.com/CPAresidentfeedback.  Written, faxed, or website comments must be received by 
5:00 p.m. on April 11, 2016.  Information regarding the proposals or a copy of the DNS may be 
obtained free of charge by calling the Benton County Planning Department at (509) 736-3086 (from 
Tri Cities) or 786-5612 (Prosser) or by accessing the website at http:/tinyurl.com/cpadocs. 

It is Benton County’s policy that no qualified individual with a disability shall by reason of such 
disability be excluded from participation in public meetings.  If you wish to use auxiliary aids or 
require assistance to comment at this public meeting, please contact the ADA Coordinator or the 
Benton County Planning Department at the above stated phone numbers and/or address no later 
than 48 hours prior to the date of the meeting. The Request for Reasonable Accommodation form is 
available online at www.co.benton.wa.us or from the Planning Department. 

Dated this 25th day of March 2016. 

Martin Sheeran, Chairman 
Benton County Planning Commission 

Michael Shuttleworth, Planning Manager 
Benton County Planning Department 

PUBLISH Thursday March 31, 2016 

PCM 1.11

http://tinyurl.com/CPAresidentfeedback
http://tinyurl.com/cpadocs
http://www.co.benton.wa.us/


Benton County Planning Department 
Planning Annex, P.O. Box 910, 1002 Dudley Avenue, Prosser WA 99350, Phone: (509) 786-5612 or (509) 736-3086, Fax (509) 786-5629 

Benton County Planning Department 
2016 Comprehensive Plan Amendment Docket 

The 2016 Benton County Comprehensive Plan amendment cycle for the review of 
proposed amendments begins with the docketing of proposals. The County has received 
the following application proposals for amendment to the Benton County 
Comprehensive Land Use Plan: 

CPA 2016-001 - A proposal by Gene Mercer, requesting a change in land use 
designation from Rural Lands Five (RL-5) to Heavy Industrial (HI) at 228812 E. Game 
Farm Road, in the Southwest Quarter of the Southeast Quarter of Section 23, Township 
8 North, Range 30 East, W.M.  

This application will be reviewed under the requirements of SEPA (RCW 43.21C) and 
Title 16.14 of the Benton County Code.  The Planning Department will initiate review 
and analysis of the application for consistency with the Growth Management Act and 
the Comprehensive Plan, including the adopted Benton County-wide Planning Policies 
and prepare a staff report with recommendation to the Planning Commission for 
approval or denial of the application.  The Planning Commission will conduct an open 
record hearing and forward their recommendations to the Board of County 
Commissioners (BOCC).  The BOCC will conduct an open record hearing to consider and 
act upon the Planning Commission recommendation.  Notification of the hearings will be 
published in advance; those interested in receiving a notice by mail or email regarding 
the above actions may call the Benton County Planning Department: at (509) 786-5612 
(Prosser) or (509) 736-3086 (Tri-Cities).  Information regarding the amendment process 
is available via the County website at www.co.benton.wa.us 

Michael Shuttleworth, Planning Manager 
BENTON COUNTY PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

PUBLISHED: January 26, 2016. 

PCM 1.12

http://www.co.benton.wa.us/






DATED
PCR 1 PCR 1.1 Application & Maps November 30, 2015
Includes: PCR 1.2 Environmental Checklist November 30, 2016

PCM 1 PCM 1.1 Staff Memo March 31, 2016
Includes: PCM 1.2 Comprehensive Plan Land Use Map 4.0 July 21, 2015

PCM 1.3 Comprehensive Plan Land Use Map 4.6 July 21, 2015
PCM 1.4 1998 Aerial Site Map February 16, 2016
PCM 1.5 2012 Aerial Site Map February 16, 2016
PCM 1.6 Map showing Zoning Districts February 16, 2016
PCM 1.7 Aerial Map November 30, 2015
PCM 1.8 Determination of Non-Significance February 17, 2016
PCM 1.9 Notice of Public Hearing and Notice of Application March 25, 2016
PCM 1.10 Benton County Fire Marshal Comments February 18, 2016

PCH PCH 1.1 Email from JA Staffens April 11, 2016
Includes: PCH 1.2 Letter from Peggy Loran April 11, 2016

BCCM BCCM 1.1 Board of County Commissioners Agenda Sheet June 7, 2016
Includes: BCCM 1.2 Draft Resolution June 14, 2016

BCCM 1.3 Planning Commission Recommendation May 12, 2016
BCCM 1.4 Notice of Public Hearing May 25, 2016

BCCH 1 BCCH 1.1
BCCH 1.2

PCR = Planning Commission Record Exhibits
PCM = Planning Commission Memo Exhibits
PCH = Planning Commission Exhibits submitted
during Hearing
BCCM = Board of County Commissioners Memo
Exhibits
BCCH = Board of County Commissioners Hearing 
Exhibits submitted during Hearing

Planning Commission Staff Memo Exhibit List - (April 12, 2016 cancelled) May 10, 2016

EXHIBIT LIST FOR 
Zone Change Request - ZC 2016-001 

Planning Commission Application Exhibit List 

Board of County Commissioners Staff Memo List - June 14, 2016

Board of County Commissioners Hearing Exhibit List -June 14, 2016

Planning Commission Hearing Exhibit List - May 10, 2016

WEH
Text Box
Zone Change – ZC 2016-001 ~ M Shuttleworth



AGENDA ITEM 
MTG. DATE: June 14, 2016 
SUBJECT: Zone Change Request- ZC 
2016-001, “RL-5 to HI” 
MEMO DATE: June 7, 2016 
Prepared By: R.J. Lott 
Reviewed By: Michael Shuttleworth 

TYPE OF ACTION 
NEEDED 
Execute Contract  
Pass Resolution X 
Pass Ordinance  
Pass Motion  X 
Other    

Consent Agenda  
Public Hearing X 
1st Discussion  
2nd Discussion  
Other    

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
On May 10, 2016, the Benton County Planning Commission conducted an open record hearing on 
the request to change the zoning classification of a portion of Section 23 of Township 8 North, 
Range 30 East, from Rural Lands 5 to Heavy Industrial.  After closing the Open Record Hearing and 
discussing the proposed change of zoning, the Planning Commission made a recommendation to 
approve Zone Change Request ZC 2016-001. The Planning Commission’s record and 
recommendation for ZC 2016-001 is being submitted for the Board’s review and decision.  The 
Board’s Closed Record Hearing is scheduled for June 14, 2016 at 9:00 a.m. to review the record and 
recommendation of the Planning Commission. 
 
The Board of County Commissioners must make a final decision on the zone change application 
based on the Planning Commission’s Open Record Hearing and cannot consider any testimony other 
than the testimony presented to the Planning Commission at their Open Record Hearing. The only 
information the Board can consider is the clarification of statements regarding the testimony and 
information contained in the Planning Commission Record for this application. Attached for the 
Board’s review is an audio copy of the hearing, the Planning Commission Record and the signed 
Recommendation, Findings and Conclusion of the Planning Commission Closed Record Hearing. 
 
SUMMARY 
The Benton County Planning Commission has completed the Open Record Hearing for the Zone 
Change application ZC 2016-001 to change the zoning classification in Section 23 of Township 8 
North, Range 30 East, from Rural Lands 5 to Heavy Industrial.  The Board of County Commissioners 
will consider the application and recommendation of the Planning Commission at a public meeting 
on June 14, 2016. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
After closing the Open Record Hearing and discussing the issue, the Planning Commission voted to 
recommend approval of the zone change application.  After reviewing the information presented at 
the public meeting, the Planning staff recommends that the Board adopt the Planning Commission’s 
recommendation, Findings and Conclusions, and approve the proposed zone change. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT - None 
 
MOTION  
That the Board adopt the Planning Commission recommendation, Findings and Conclusions as their 
own and approve the Zone Change Application ZC 2016-001.  

BCCM 1.1 



RESOLUTION 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY PLANNING REGARDING: CHANGE IN THE ZONING 
CLASSIFICATION FOR ONE PARCEL TOTALING 40 ACRES FROM RURAL LANDS 5 ACRE TO HEAVY 
INDUSTRIAL. APPLICANT: KENNEWICK GAME FARM LLC. PARCEL NUMBER: 1-2380-400-006-000 
FILE NO. ZC 2016-001. 
 
WHEREAS, the Benton County Planning Commission after conducting an open record hearing 
and review on May 10, 2016, recommended approval of the proposed change in zoning 
classification from Rural Lands 5 Acre to Heavy Industrial; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners did conduct a closed record meeting on June 
14, 2016, at 9:00 a.m. in the Commissioners Meeting Room, Third Floor of the Courthouse, 
Prosser, Washington to consider the above proposed change in zoning classification from Rural 
Lands 5 Acre to Heavy Industrial; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners did review the Planning Commission and staff’s 
recommendations and finds that proper legal notification, public hearing and review have been 
made and it appears to be in the public interest to accept said recommendation; and,  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the Board adopts the Planning Commission’s 
Recommendation, Findings of Fact, and Conclusions dated May 10, 2016, as retained in File No. 
ZC 2016-001 located in the Planning Office as its Findings of Fact; 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Board of County Commissioners APPROVES Zone Change 
Application ZC 2016-001 for the change in zoning classification from Rural Lands 5 Acre to Heavy 
Industrial for the following described property: 
 

THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 23, 
TOWNSHIP 8 NORTH, RANGE 30 EAST OF THE WILLAMETTE MERIDIAN. 
 

Dated this 14th day of June, 2016 
 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Chairman of the Board 
 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Member 
 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Member 
 Constituting the Board of County 
Attest....................................................... Commissioners of Benton County 
 Clerk of the Board Washington. 

  

BCCM 1.2 



BCCM 1.3







5-12-16



Benton County Planning Department 
Planning Annex, P.O. Box 910, 1002 Dudley Avenue, Prosser WA 99350, Phone: (509) 786-5612 or (509) 736-3086, Fax (509) 786-5629 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

NOTICE OF HEARINGS before the Board of County Commissioners, in the matter of County 
Planning:  

Benton County Comprehensive Plan Amendment - File No. CPA 2016-001, a proposal to change the 
Land Use Designation from Rural Lands 5 Acre to Heavy industrial on a 40 acre parcel.  The proposal 
site is located on at 228812 E. Game Farm Road in the Southwest Quarter of the Southeast Quarter 
in Section 23, Township 8 North, Range 30 East, W.M., one half mile east of the intersection of 
Game Farm Road and SR 397.  Applicant:  Kennewick Game Farm LLC 

Zone Change Request – ZC 2016-001, a proposal to change the Land use zoning from Rural Lands 5 
to Heavy Industrial on a 40 acre parcel.  The proposal site is located on at 228812 E. Game Farm 
Road in the Southwest Quarter of the Southeast Quarter in Section 23, Township 8 North, Range 30 
East, W.M., one half mile east of the intersection of Game Farm Road and SR 397.  Applicant: 
Kennewick Game Farm LLC 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that public comment will be taken on the above proposals on Tuesday, 
June 14, 2016 at 9:00 a.m., Commissioners Meeting Room, Third Floor, Courthouse, Prosser WA.  
CPA 2016-001 & ZC 2016-001 have been reviewed under the requirements of the State 
Environmental Policy Act (RCW 43.21C) and a Determination of Non-Significance (DNS) was issued 
on February 17, 2016. 

Comments regarding the proposed amendments or SEPA determination in regard to the proposal 
may be made at the above-mentioned hearing, submitted in writing to the Benton County Planning 
Department; P.O. Box 910, Prosser, WA 99350; Faxed to (509) 786-5629; or sent via the County 
website at http://tinyurl.com/CPAresidentfeedback.  All comments must be received by 3:00 p.m., 
on Monday, June 13, 2016.  Information regarding the UGA amendment proposal or a copy of the 
DNS may be obtained free of charge by calling the Benton County Planning Department at (509) 
736-3086 (from Tri Cities) or 786-5612 (Prosser) or accessing the website at 
http://tinyurl.com/CPAdocs or http://tinyurl.com/ZCdocs.  Any information submitted to Benton 
County is subject to the public records disclosure law for the State of Washington (RCW Chapter 
42.17) and all other applicable law that may require the release of the documents to the public. 

It is Benton County’s policy that no qualified individual with a disability shall by reason of such 
disability be excluded from participation in public meetings.  If you wish to use auxiliary aids or 
require assistance to comment at this public meeting, please contact the ADA Coordinator or the 
Benton County Planning Department at the above stated phone numbers and/or address no later 
than 48 hours prior to the date of the meeting. The Request for Reasonable Accommodation form is 
available online at www.co.benton.wa.us or from the Planning Department. 

Dated this 25th day of May 2016. 

Shon Small, Chairman 
Board of County Commissioners 

Michael Shuttleworth, Planning Manager 
Benton County Planning Department 

PUBLISH Thursday, June 2, 2016 

BCCM 1.4

http://tinyurl.com/CPAresidentfeedback
http://tinyurl.com/CPAdocs
http://tinyurl.com/ZCdocs
http://www.co.benton.wa.us/






 Page 1 

Benton County Planning Department 
Planning Annex, P.O. Box 910, 1002 Dudley Avenue, Prosser WA 99350, Phone: (509) 786-5612 or (509) 736-3086, Fax (509) 786-5629 

 
 
 
 
DATE:  March 31, 2016 
 
TO:   BENTON COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
FROM:  BENTON COUNTY PLANNING DEPARTMENT 
 
RE: ZC 2016-001 - A PROPOSAL TO CHANGE THE ZONING FROM 

RURAL LANDS FIVE TO HEAVY INDUSTRIAL 
 
APPLICANT: KENNEWICK GAME FARM LLC, 228812 E. GAME FARM RD. 

KENNEWICK, WA 99338 
 
 
SPECIFIC REQUEST: A proposal to change the land use zoning from Rural Lands 5 to 
Heavy Industrial on a 40 acre parcel.  
 
PURPOSE OF THE PLAN AMENDMENT: The purpose of the proposed zone change is 
to amend the land use zoning to be consistent with the adjacent Heavy Industrial 
zoning bordering the property along its North and East boundary, to allow the current 
use of the parcel to be expanded.  (PCM 1.6, and PCM 1.5,). 
 
LEGAL NOTICE PUBLISHED:  The legal notice (PCM 1.9) required by Benton County 
Code, for the Planning Commission's Open Record Hearing on the proposal Zone 
Change ZC 2016-001, was published in the Tri-City Herald on Thursday, March 31, 
2016. The legal notices were mailed to interested parties on the Public Participation 
(PPP) list and sent electronically to those on the PPP email list. The legal notification of 
the 2016 Zone Change Docket was published in the Tri-City Herald on March 31, 2016. 
 
STATE ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY ACT: 
ZC 2016-001 has been reviewed under the requirements of the State Environmental 
Policy Act, as amended and a Determination of Non-Significance (DNS) was issued on 
February 17, 2016.  Copies of the Environmental Checklist, the Determination of Non-
Significance, and the comments received from reviewing agencies are attached to this 
memorandum (PCR 1.2, PCM 1.8 and 1.10). 
 
PROPOSED PROPERTY LOCATION: 
The parcel is located at 228812 E. Game Farm Road in the Southwest Quarter of 
Southeast Quarter of Section 23, Township 8 North, Range 30 East. W.M., one half mile 
East of the intersection of Game Farm Rd. and SR 397. 
 
 
 

PCM 1.1 



 Page 2 

LAND USE: 
The subject parcel is currently developed with three residences with accessory 
structures and agricultural uses, including crop circles and the storage of agricultural 
products and equipment. 
 
ZONING: 
The subject property is zoned Rural Lands 5.  
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN LAND USE DESIGNATION: 
The Benton County Comprehensive Plan designates the subject property as Rural Lands 
5 and is shown on the Comprehensive Plan Land Use Map 4.6, in Chapter Four, the 
Land Use Element. The applicant has also submitted an application to change the Land 
Use Designation from Rural Lands 5 to Heavy Industrial, CPA 2016-001. 
 
APPLICABLE DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS:  
 

1. Benton County Code Section 11.52.110 states the following for changes in zone 
classification: 
 

"AMENDMENTS.  The Board of Commissioners may, upon 
recommendation of the County Planning Commission, change by 
resolution the district boundary lines or zone classification as shown 
on the use district maps, and or amend, supplement or change by 
resolution the regulations herein contained. When said 
recommendation is made by the County Planning Commission, said 
commission shall cause a survey of the existing land uses and 
resources of such subdivision of the County to be made as 
expediently as funds and circumstances permit; and shall prepare a 
preliminary classification of all property within such subdivision of 
the county in one or more of the use districts provided in this title.  
After holding at least one open record hearing, the County Planning 
Commission shall transmit to the Board of County Commissioners 
its recommendations for the classification of all property in the 
proposed district.  The Board of County Commissioners, upon 
receipt from the Planning Commission of the said recommendation 
for change, may adopt, alter or reject by resolution the 
recommended change in the district boundary lines, zone 
classifications or regulations.  The Board of County Commissioners 
may conduct public hearings involving recommendations of the 
Planning Commission on amendments to the text of this title or 
area wide zone changes, but with respect to site specific zone 
change requests, the Board of County Commissioners must 
consider the issue in a closed record appeal hearing, as outlined in 
BCC 11.52.130." 



 Page 3 

 
2.  The following goal and policies of the Benton County Comprehensive Plan would 

be applicable to this application: 
 
  GOAL 5:  
 To provide, consistent with the adopted goals and objectives of 

each rural community relative to quality of life and lifestyle, a 
diversity of land uses and an appropriate level of essential public 
and private sector services, while minimizing conflicts between 
different land uses to ensure the highest degree of public health, 
safety, and general welfare, without unduly jeopardizing the rights 
of the individual. 

 
  POLICIES: 

A. That all land uses in the county shall be classified with a land 
use designation and shown on the comprehensive plan map 
and that all implementing ordinances shall be in 
conformance with such map and Plan policies. 
 

  B. That compatible mixed uses of urban intensity are 
appropriate in Urban Growth Areas where community sewer 
and water are available or provided, and outside of Urban 
Growth Areas within designated Rural Community Core areas 
and Commercial zones, and Planned Unit Developments 
(PUD's) when rural densities are clustered under Ordinance 
provisions. 

 
  C. In order to maximize the opportunities for compatible 

development, within Land Use Designations there may be a 
diversity of uses where they serve, and are not incompatible 
with, the primary purpose and activity within the 
designation. 

 
 
STAFF’S FINDINGS OF FACT: 
 
Based on the application and information received as of the date of this memo, the 
planning staff makes the following findings: 
 

1. The applicant and property owner for ZC 2016-001 is Kennewick Game Farm 
LLC, 228812 E. Game Farm Rd., Kennewick, WA 99337. 

 
2. ZC 2016-001 is for the changing of the zoning classification of a 40 acre parcel 

from Rural Lands 5 to Heavy Industrial.  
 

3. The notice for the Benton County Planning Commission’s Open Record Hearing 



 Page 4 

for application ZC 2016-001 was published on Thursday, March 31, 2016 in the 
Tri-City Herald and mailed to property owners of record within 300 feet of the 
outer boundaries of the parcel. The Open Record Hearing is scheduled for 
Tuesday, April 12, 2016. 

 
4. The Petition for Zone Reclassification ZC 2016-001 has been reviewed under the 

requirements of the State Environmental Policy Act and a Determination of Non-
Significance (DNS) was issued on February 17, 2016.   

 
5. The applicant has also submitted a Comprehensive Plan designation for the 

parcel listed above, CPA 2015-001.  The change was based on an application by 
the Kennewick Game Farm LLC, to change the comprehensive plan designation 
of their site from Rural Lands 5 to Heavy Industrial. The Planning Commission 
will also be considering the proposed Comprehensive Plan Amendment at the 
same meeting as this Zone Change Request. 
 

6. The construction and extension of Piert Rd. and SR 397 to better serves the 
industrial uses in the area. The newer portion of SR 397 was constructed by the 
County at a cost of about 9 million dollars to provide an improved infrastructure 
to connect the industrial uses in the area to Interstate 82.  
 

DISPOSITION OF THE APPLICANT'S REQUEST: 
 
If the Planning Commission finds that the applicant's request is in compliance with the 
intent of the Benton County Comprehensive Plan and approval of the change of zone is 
in the public interest, it would appear that grounds exist for approving the zone change. 
If such findings cannot be made, it would appear that the zone change should be 
denied. 
 
If the Planning Commission finds that the application from Kennewick Game Farm LLC 
requesting that the zoning classification of their property be changed from Rural Lands 
5 to Heavy Industrial is in compliance with the intent of the Benton County 
Comprehensive Plan and approval of the change of zone is in the public interest and the 
Planning Commission decides to recommend approval of the request. Planning Staff 
recommends that the Planning Commission direct the Planning Department to forward 
to the Board of County Commissioners an ordinance that will show the following 
described property zoned as Heavy Industrial and an ordinance be placed on the Board 
of County Commissioners’ meeting agenda for their consideration: “That portion of 
Section 23, Township 8, Range 30 defined as follows: the Southwest Quarter of the 
Southeast Quarter of said section, parcel number 1-2380-400-0006-000.” 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission forward to the Board of County 
Commissioners a recommendation to approve zone change ZC-2016-001.   



395

395

397
22

14

221

221

241

24

24

225

240

14

240

240

397

224

240

224

82

82

82

82

82

182

82

82

182

T
ow

ns
hi

p 
4

T
ow

ns
hi

p 
5

Range 24

T
ow

ns
hi

p 
6

Range 25

T
ow

ns
hi

p 
7

T
ow

ns
hi

p 
8

T
ow

ns
hi

p 
9

Range 26 Range 27

T
ow

ns
hi

p 
10

T
ow

ns
hi

p 
11

T
ow

ns
hi

p 
12

T
ow

nship 12
T

ow
nship 13

T
ow

ns
hi

p 
14

T
ow

nship 14

Range 24 Range 25 Range 26 Range 27

Range 28 Range 29 Range 30 Range 31

T
ow

nship 4
T

ow
nship 5

T
ow

nship 6
T

ow
nship 7

T
ow

nship 8
T

ow
nship 9

Range 28 Range 29

T
ow

nship 10
T

ow
nship 11

Range 30
T

ow
ns

hi
p 

13
Range 31

LAND USE MAP 4.0

Benton County does not warrant, guarantee or accept liability for accuracy, precision or completeness of any information shown hereon or for any inferences made therefrom.  Any use made of this information is 
solely at the risk of the user.  Benton County makes no warranty, expressed or implied, and any oral or written statement by any employee of Benton County or agents thereof to the contrary is void and ultra vires.

Adopted by Res #'s 2015-516 
and 2015-517 
Dated July 21, 2015

0.0 1.0 2.0
Miles

BENTON COUNTY
State of Washington

Planning Department

Legend

URBAN GROWTH AREA

RURAL LANDS 1-3

RURAL LANDS 1

RURAL LANDS 5

RURAL LANDS 20

COMMUNITY CENTER

COMMUNITY COMMERCIAL

INTERCHANGE COMMERCIAL

GENERAL COMMERCIAL

LIGHT INDUSTRIAL

HEAVY INDUSTRIAL

PUBLIC

OPEN SPACE CONSERVATION

GMA AGRICULTURAL

HANFORD

HANFORD REACH

PCM 1. 2



395

395

397

240

397

0.0 0.5 1.0

Miles

Legend

City Limits

URBAN GROWTH AREA

RURAL LANDS 1-3

RURAL LANDS 5

RURAL LANDS 20

COMMUNITY CENTER

COMMUNITY COMMERCIAL

GENERAL COMMERCIAL

LIGHT INDUSTRIAL

HEAVY INDUSTRIAL

GMA AG

PUBLIC

LAND USE MAP 4.6

Dated October 5, 2015

KENNEWICK-FINLEY

PLANNING AREA

Finley

Kennewick

R30 R31R29 R30

T
8
  
 T

9

T
8
  
 T

9
T

7
  
 T

8

T
7
  
 T

8

R30 R31R29 R30

Benton County does not warrant, guarantee or accept liability for accuracy, precision or completeness of any information shown hereon or for any inferences made therefrom.  Any use made of this information is
solely at the risk of the user.  Benton County makes no warranty, expressed or implied, and any oral or written statement by any employee of Benton County or agents thereof to the contrary is void and ultra vires.

BENTON COUNTY
State of Washington

Planning Department

Adopted by Res # 2015-517
Dated July 21, 2015

PCM 1.3



Benton County
Planning

Department

 MAP FOR ZC 2016-001 REQUEST 
Map Created:  February 16, 2016

Orthophoto Flown:  1998

PCM 1.4

Benton County does not warrant, guarantee, or accept liability for accuracy, precision or 
completeness of any information shown hereon or for any inferences made therefrom. Any 
use made of this information is solely at the risk of the user.  Benton County makes no 
warranty, expressed or implied, and any oral or written statement by any employee of Benton 
County or agents thereof to the contrary is void and ultra vires.  The information shown herein 
is a product of the Benton County Geographic Information Systems, and is prepared for 
presentation purposes only. 

SITE



Benton County
Planning

Department

 MAP FOR ZC 2016-001 REQUEST
Map Created:  February 16, 2016

Orthophoto Flown:  2012

PCM 1.5

Benton County does not warrant, guarantee, or accept liability for accuracy, precision or 
completeness of any information shown hereon or for any inferences made therefrom. Any 
use made of this information is solely at the risk of the user.  Benton County makes no 
warranty, expressed or implied, and any oral or written statement by any employee of Benton 
County or agents thereof to the contrary is void and ultra vires.  The information shown herein 
is a product of the Benton County Geographic Information Systems, and is prepared for 
presentation purposes only. 

SITE



Benton County
Planning

Department

 ZONING MAP FOR CPA 2016-001 
Map Created:  February 16, 2016

PCM 1.6
 

Benton County does not warrant, guarantee, or accept liability for accuracy, precision or 
completeness of any information shown hereon or for any inferences made therefrom. Any 
use made of this information is solely at the risk of the user.  Benton County makes no 
warranty, expressed or implied, and any oral or written statement by any employee of Benton 
County or agents thereof to the contrary is void and ultra vires.  The information shown herein 
is a product of the Benton County Geographic Information Systems, and is prepared for 
presentation purposes only. 

BENTON COUNTY ZONING

HEAVY INDUSTRIAL

RURAL LANDS 5

SITE

djh2
Rectangle



PCM 1.7



DETERMINATION OF NON-SIGNIFICANCE 

Description of proposal: CPA 2016-001 - A proposal for a Comprehensive Plan amendment 
for a change in the land use designation from Rural Lands Five (RL-5) to Heavy Industrial (HI) 
on a 1.5 acre parcel. 

Proponent  Gene Mercer File No. EA 2015-030 
228808 E. Game Farm Road 
Kennewick WA 99337 

Location of proposal, including street address, if any: The proposal is located in the Finley 
rural area, in the Southwest Quarter of Section 23, Township 8 North, Range 30 East, W.M. 

Lead agency     BENTON COUNTY 
The lead agency for this proposal has determined that it does not have a probable 

significant adverse impact on the environment.  An environmental impact statement (EIS) is not 
required under RCW 43.21C.030(2)(c).  This decision was made after review of a completed 
environmental checklist and other information on file with the lead agency.  This information is 
available to the public on request. 

This DNS is issued under 197-11-340(2); the lead agency will not act on this proposal for 14 days 
from the date below.  Comments must be submitted by March 2, 2016. 

Responsible Official: Michael Shuttleworth 
Position/Title: Planning Manager 
Address: P.O. Box 910, Prosser WA 99350 

• Email planning.department@co.benton.wa.us
• Phone/Fax: (509)786-5612/(509) 786-5629;

DATE OF ISSUE:  February 17, 2016 Signature:/s/ Michael Shuttleworth 

THERE IS NO AGENCY APPEAL. 

DISTRIBUTION: 
Applicant 
News Media  
Benton County Building Office 
Dept. of Natural Resources-Olympia 
Dept. of Natural Resources -Ellensburg 
Benton Clean Air Authority 
Bureau of Reclamation 
Benton County Public Works 
Benton Franklin Dist. Health Dept. 
Columbia Irrigation District 
Department of Transportation 
Washington State Department of Health 
Department of Ecology - Olympia  
Department of Ecology - Yakima 

Fire District #1 
Fire Marshal 
Bureau of Land Management 
Department of Fish and Wildlife  
Office of Arch. & Historic Preservation 
Futurewise 
Dept. of Commerce 

PCM 1.8

mailto:planning.department@co.benton.wa.us


Benton County Planning Department 
Planning Annex, P.O. Box 910, 1002 Dudley Avenue, Prosser WA 99350, Phone: (509) 786-5612 or (509) 736-3086, Fax (509) 786-5629 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

NOTICE OF HEARINGS before the Benton County Planning Commission, in the matter of County 
Planning:  

Benton County Comprehensive Plan Amendment - File No. CPA 2016-001, a proposal to change the 
Land Use Designation from Rural Lands 5 Acre to Heavy industrial on a 40 acre parcel.  The proposal 
site is located on at 228812 E. Game Farm Road in the Southwest Quarter of the Southeast Quarter 
in Section 23, Township 8 North, Range 30 East, W.M., one half mile east of the intersection of 
Game Farm Road and SR 397.  Applicant:  Kennewick Game Farm LLC 

Zone Change Request – ZC 2016-001, a proposal to change the Land use zoning from Rural Lands 5 
to Heavy Industrial on a 40 acre parcel.  The proposal site is located on at 228812 E. Game Farm 
Road in the Southwest Quarter of the Southeast Quarter in Section 23, Township 8 North, Range 30 
East, W.M., one half mile east of the intersection of Game Farm Road and SR 397.  Applicant: 
Kennewick Game Farm LLC 

Countywide Planning Policies – Amendments are being made to the Benton County Countywide 
Planning Policies (CWPPs) adopted in February of 1993.  The Countywide Planning Policies are 
written policy statements used solely for establishing a countywide framework from which county 
and city comprehensive plans are developed and adopted.  

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that public comment will be taken on the above proposals on Tuesday, 
April 12, 2016 at 7:00 p.m., in the Benton County Planning Annex Hearing Room at 1002 Dudley 
Avenue in Prosser.  CPA 2016-001 & ZC 2016-001 have been reviewed under the requirements of 
the State Environmental Policy Act (RCW 43.21C) and a Determination of Non-Significance (DNS) 
was issued on February 17, 2016. 

Comments regarding the proposals or the SEPA determination may be made at the above-mentioned 
hearing, submitted in writing to the Benton County Planning Department; P.O. Box 910, Prosser, WA 
99350; Faxed to (509) 786-5629; or sent via the County website at 
http://tinyurl.com/CPAresidentfeedback.  Written, faxed, or website comments must be received by 
5:00 p.m. on April 11, 2016.  Information regarding the proposals or a copy of the DNS may be 
obtained free of charge by calling the Benton County Planning Department at (509) 736-3086 (from 
Tri Cities) or 786-5612 (Prosser) or by accessing the website at http:/tinyurl.com/cpadocs. 

It is Benton County’s policy that no qualified individual with a disability shall by reason of such 
disability be excluded from participation in public meetings.  If you wish to use auxiliary aids or 
require assistance to comment at this public meeting, please contact the ADA Coordinator or the 
Benton County Planning Department at the above stated phone numbers and/or address no later 
than 48 hours prior to the date of the meeting. The Request for Reasonable Accommodation form is 
available online at www.co.benton.wa.us or from the Planning Department. 

Dated this 25th day of March 2016. 

Martin Sheeran, Chairman 
Benton County Planning Commission 

Michael Shuttleworth, Planning Manager 
Benton County Planning Department 

PUBLISH Thursday March 31, 2016 

PCM 1.9

http://tinyurl.com/CPAresidentfeedback
http://tinyurl.com/cpadocs
http://www.co.benton.wa.us/


WEH
Text Box
Short Plat Vacation 2016-002 ~ M Shuttleworth















AGENDA ITEM     
MTG. DATE:  June 14, 2016 
SUBJECT:  Final Plat of Summit 
View Ph. 9 & 10 Subdivision SUB 
2016-002 
MEMO DATE: June 7, 2016 
Prepared By: Clark A. Posey
Reviewed By: Clark A. Posey 

TYPE OF ACTION 
NEEDED 
Execute Contract 
Pass Resolution X 
Pass Ordinance 
Pass Motion  X 
Other  

Consent Agenda 
Public Meeting X 
1st Discussion 
2nd Discussion 
Other  

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
On August 8, 1990, the Benton County Board of County Commissioners approved the 
preliminary plat of Summit View, to create 360 lots from 517-acres.  The preliminary plat 
was approved subject to 21 conditions.  Those conditions have been completed for the 
Final Plat of Summit View Phases 9 & 10 and the final plat is being submitted to the Board 
for their approval and signature. 

SUMMARY 
All the conditions of approval have been satisfied and all signatures have been obtained. 
The Final Plat of Summit View Phases 9 & 10 is ready for signature by the Chairman of the 
Board of County Commissioners.  

RECOMMENDATION 
It is the recommendation of the Benton County Planning Department that the Final Plat of 
Summit View Phases 9 & 10, SUB 2016-002 be approved and the Board sign the attached 
resolution authorizing the chairman to sign the final plat at a public meeting on June 14, 
2016. 

FISCAL IMPACT  
Maintenance of new county roads. 

MOTION  
The Board of County Commissioners approves the Final Plat of Summit View Phases 9 & 
10, SUB 2016-002 and the Chairman so indicate by signing the final plat. 

WEH
Text Box
Final Plat of Summit View; SUB 2016-002 ~ M Shuttleworth



RESOLUTION
BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY PLANNING RE: THE FINAL PLAT OF SUMMIT VIEW PHASE 
9 & 10 SUB 2016-002  Applicant: Candy Mountain LLC  

WHEREAS, on August 8, 1990, the Board of County Commissioners approved the 
preliminary plat of Summit View - SUB 90-01; and  

WHEREAS, On Tuesday, June 14, 2016, in the Commissioners Meeting Room, third 
floor, Courthouse, Prosser, Washington at a public meeting, the Board of County 
Commissioners considered the final plat of Summit View Phases 9 & 10 - SUB 2016-
002; and, 

WHEREAS, the applicant for final plat approval has completed all the required 
conditions of approval for the proposed final plat of Summit View Phases 9 & 10 - SUB 
2016-002 and has obtained all required signatures; and 

WHEREAS, it appears to be in the publics best interest to approve said final plat of 
Summit View Phases 9 & 10 - SUB 2016-002, NOW THEREFORE, 

BE IT RESOLVED that the Summit View Phases 9 & 10 - SUB 2016-002 is approved and 
the Chairman so indicate by signing the plat. 

Dated this 14th day of June 2016. 

______________________________ 
Chairman of the Board 

______________________________ 
Member 

______________________________ 
Member 

Constituting the Board of County 
Commissioners of Benton County 

Washington. 
Attest....................................................... 

Clerk of the Board CAP 











Road Department Annual Report 

 

The Benton County Road Department strives to provide the highest quality 

roadway infrastructure to the public through prudent use of resources, 

technology, innovation and teamwork. 

 

The  Benton  County  Road Department  is  responsible  for  the  overall  design,  construction  and 

maintenance of  the County Road system.   Through the ER&R Division  the Department  is also 

responsible for the maintenance and repair of the County’s fleet of vehicles.  The Department 

currently has 42 employees and a Biennial operating budget of over $37 million.  The Department 

is divided  into several divisions, each  responsible  for one or more of  the major  functions  the 

Department performs. 

Major Functions 

 Road maintenance 

 Signs and Markings 

 Road design and construction 

 Traffic and Engineering Services 

 Asset Management, Maintenance Management and GIS 

 Fleet maintenance 

 Pits and quarries 

 Solid waste program 

 Administration 

Road Maintenance 

The Road Maintenance Division is responsible for the maintenance of approximately 860 miles 

of roadway.  Of that 605 miles are hard surfaced and 255 miles are gravel.  The Division consists 

of 16 road maintenance workers and 2 road superintendents.  Seasonal employees are added on 

an as needed basis.  The Division operates from two main facilities, one in Prosser and the other 

in Kennewick.  Annual maintenance activities include: 

Summer: 

 Blading and rock raking of gravel roads 

 Power broom paved roads 

 Mowing for weed control 

 Pothole and edge patching 

 Spot spraying for weed control 

WEH
Text Box
Road Department Annual Report & Presentation ~ M Rasmussen



 Catch basin and drywell cleanout 

Fall: 

 Blading and rock raking of gravel roads 

 Power broom paved roads and street sweeping in curbed areas 

 Brush and tree trimming 

 Weed burning 

 Culvert cleaning 

 Road side ditch and shoulder repair 

 Pre‐emergent herbicide application 

 Spot Spraying for weed control 

 Mowing for weed control 

 Crack sealing (contract) 

Winter: 

 Snow and ice control 

 Blading and rock raking of gravel roads (weather permitting) 

 Weed burning 

 Culvert cleaning 

 Road side ditch and shoulder repair 

Spring: 

 Blading and rock raking of gravel roads 

 Power broom paved roads and street sweeping, curb areas and bridge decks 

 Mowing for weed control 

 Pothole and edge patching 

 Pre‐emergent herbicide application 

 Shoulder repairs 

 Crack sealing (contract) 

 Chip Seal (contract) 

Special Activities (Year Around): 

 Bridge repair 

 Dead animal removal 

 Litter Clean‐up 

 Guardrail repair 

 Emergency repairs and miscellaneous critical issues 

 



2015 Regular Maintenance Accomplishments 

Activity  Prosser  Kennewick  Total  Unit 

Pre‐Level , Overlay  503.49  21.15  524.64  tons 

Patching  104.47  122.71  227.18  tons 

Blading ‐ Irrigated  1258  2826.9  4084.9  miles 

Blading ‐ Dry  1425  1131.1  2556.1  miles 

Gravel Rock Haul  5505  6757.5  12262.5  cubic yards 

Shouldering  286.89  151.93  438.82  shoulder miles 

Gravel Rock Rake  1514  614.4  2128.4  pass miles 

Ditch Cleaning  10.36  92.19  102.55  ditch miles 

Culvert Cleaning  7  27  34  each 

Storm Water Control  51  124.5  175.5  hours 

Guardrail Repair  488  54  542  feet 

Snow & Ice Control  573  624  1197  hours 

Snow Chemical Application  60  97.67  157.67  hours 

Snow Preparation  137  108  245  hours 

Street Cleaning  107.13  278.52  385.65  miles 

Vegetation Spraying ‐ Red  203.3  334.2  537.5  acres 

Vegetation Spraying ‐ Green  215.2  276.6  491.8  acres 

Vegetation Spraying ‐ Blue  0  41.9  41.9  acres 

Vegetation Spraying ‐ Spot  228  150.6  378.6  acres 

Vegetation Burning  448  459  907  hours 

Mowing  1056  345.1  1401.1  pass miles 

Brush Cutting  1798.5  813.5  2612  hours 

Littler Clean up  192.5  261.5  454  hours 

 

Signs and Markings 

The Signs and Marking Division consist of 1 full time employee and 1 part time employee.  They 

are  responsible  for  fabrication,  installation and maintenance of 5850 signs.   The Division also 

oversees the annual pavement marking contract and makes repairs to markings on an as needed 

basis. 

Road Design and Construction 

The Road Design  and Construction division  consists  of  7  full  time employees  including  a  two 

person survey crew.  The division typically manages over 3 million dollars of capital construction 

projects annually.  Projects are primarily designed in the spring and summer, bid in the fall, and 

constructed in winter and spring to avoid conflicts with adjoining land uses (primarily farming).  

Road construction projects are  funded  from several  sources  including  federal and state grant 

programs and local tax dollars.  On average state and federal grants make up 75% of the capital 



improvement program.  The remainder comes from local property taxes, the County’s share of 

the Motor Vehicle Fuel Tax and the County Road Improvement Matching Program (CRIMP) which 

is funded by a payment in lieu of tax from the Department of Energy.   

The Division prepares the Six Year Transportation Improvement Plan for the County as well as 

the One Year Road Program.  Both of these documents are necessary in order to be eligible for 

State and Federal grant programs. 

Traffic and Engineering Services 

The traffic and engineering services division handles all traffic and roadway related issues that 

come into the department.  Additionally they review and approves all land use applications that 
impact the County Road system.  These include short plats, long plats, road construction plans, 

road approach permits and utility  crossing permits.    This division consists of 2  full  time staff.  

These staff members work closely with the planning and building departments to process land 

development and building permits.   The division on average reviews 250 road approaches, 17 

short plats, 4 long plats and 5 subdivision construction drawings annually. 

Asset Management, Maintenance Management and GIS 

The  Road  Department  is  responsible  to  catalog  and  maintain  all  of  its  roadways  and 

appurtenances  (signs,  culverts,  drains,  drywells,  etc).    Currently  the  Department  utilizes  a 

program called Mobility, which is provided free of charge from the County Road Administration 

Board (CRAB). 

Starting in July the Road Department will add one full time staff person who’s focus will be to 

gather and compile information on the road system for inclusion in the County’s GIS system.  The 

Road Department goal is to track assets such as bridges, culverts, catch basins and road right of 

way in the GIS system rather than just in the Mobility software.  The staff person assigned to this 

roll will work directly with the GIS Department to get the relevant data into the system and in a 

format useable to the Department and the general public. 

Maintenance management is the practice of evaluating ongoing activities in the Department to 

ensure we are operating at  the most efficient  level possible.    Labor, equipment and material 

usage are monitored at a highly detailed level and a cost per unit of work is established for each 

activity  performed.    As  adjustments  are made  to  how  the  work  is  done  (number  of  people 

assigned,  type of equipment used, etc)  it  can be  readily  seen what  the  impact  to  the cost  to 

perform the work is.  This information is used when determining staffing levels and equipment 

needs for the department. 

Fleet Maintenance (ER&R) 

The  Fleet  Maintenance  division  is  responsible  for  the  upkeep  and  maintenance  of  all  Road 

Department equipment as well as numerous vehicles for other County Departments and several 

neighboring agencies.  Currently the division services and maintains 350 vehicles and pieces of 



equipment.  The division is based in two locations, one in Kennewick and one in Prosser.  There 

are 5 full time mechanics in order to meet the needs of the County.  One of the major focuses for 

the division is preventative maintenance.   The division has set a goal that 80% of vehicles will 

have  issues corrected as part of  its preventative maintenance program before they become a 

breakdown.     

The Fleet Maintenance division  is also responsible  for maintaining road materials  inventories.  

The Division purchases certain materials in bulk and stock piles them to be used, and paid for, 

incrementally by the Road Maintenance division.  

Pits and Quarries 

The  Road  Department  owns  or  leases  10  gravel  pits  for  the  production  of  a majority  of  the 

crushed  rock  aggregate  it  uses  in  its  regular  maintenance  activities  and  some  construction 

projects.   The Department currently has 268,644 cubic yards of gravel on hand.  Operating its 

own pits allows the Department to obtain needed materials at a significantly lower price than 

purchasing from commercial facilities.  Pits and Quarries are managed by the ER&R division with 

assistance from Road Department administration.   

Solid Waste Program 

The solid waste division focuses on reducing waste that enters regional landfills.  To accomplish 

this  the division administers programs  that  collect  recyclable materials  at  the various County 

facilities  and  collects  hazardous waste  typically  generated  by  normal  households  before  it  is 

mixed in with regular trash.   

Annually the program collects approximately 7.5 tons of paper and 0.25 tons of bottles and cans 

from  the  various County Departments who participate.    That’s  125  trees  and enough energy 

saved to power an average home for a year. 

In order to remove household hazardous waste from the normal waste stream the division has 

historically  hosted  collection  events.    The  events  are  held  in  population  centers  (Kennewick, 

Richland, Prosser) on an annual or bi‐annual basis.  In order to better serve the public need for 

this service the division is in the process of opening a permanent collection facility within the City 

of Kennewick.  This facility would be open on a regular basis to allow residents to drop off waste 

more frequently rather than hold on to it for a collection event. 

Administration 

The Administration Division consists of 4 full time employees and provides accounting, payroll, 

purchasing and general support services. 

2015 Major Accomplishments 

Completed new Kennewick ER&R and Road Maintenance Facility 



Completed Road Projects: 

Antinori Road Phase II – 1 mile 

Nine Canyon Road Phase I – 3 miles 

Major Maintenance Activities: 

Bitumonous Surface Treatment (Chip Seal) – 63 Miles 

Roadway Crack Sealing – 128 miles 

Roadway Striping – 415 miles 

Current Projects 

Design and Construction 

Sellards Road Phase 1 – This project reconstructed a portion of Sellards Road beginning at SR 221 

and going 2 miles east.  The construction was completed in April and the project is currently in 

close out. 

Nine Canyon Road Phase 2 – This project reconstructed a portion of Nine Canyon Road beginning 

at Mills Road and going to Beck Road.  Construction was completed in May and the project is 

currently in close out. 

Tyrell Road Phase 1 – This project is reconstructing a portion of Tyrel Road from Plymouth Road 

and going 2 miles west, converting it from a gravel road to a paved road.  The project is expected 

to begin work in May and be completed by July. 

Kennewick  Annex  Parking  Lot  Retrofit  –  Providing  design  and  bidding  assistance  to  add  a 

connection from the upper parking area to the lower parking area to facilitate better flow in and 

out of the facility. 

Victoria  Street  Drain  Improvements  –  Upgrading  existing  storm  drain  facilities  and  adding 

improved drainage areas to reduce the likelihood of flooding on a portion of this roadway during 

heavy rain events. 

Prosser  to  Grandview  Bik  Path  Improvements  –  Improving  a  0.6 mile  section  of  the  existing 

pathway by leveling surrounding terrain, adding weed barrier adjacent to the pathway, improving 

the parking area at the County line and adding a rest bench. 

Meal Road Pavement Repair – Remove and replace approximately 400 feet of roadway where 

adjacent  trees  have  caused  significant  damage  to  the  pavement.    Project  include  long  term 

mitigation for the tree root systems to reduce the likelihood of future damage. 

Sage Brush Road Guardrail – Install approximately 400 feet of guardrail along Sage Brush Road 

1650 feet east of Bermuda Road.  



Badger Mountain West Trail Head Improvements – Providing design and bidding assistance to 

improve the existing gravel access roadway to a hard surface road, add additional area to the 

gravel  parking  lot  and  add  a  new  concrete  pad  to  support  additional  restrooms.    Project  is 

expected to be complete by the end of May. 

Higgins Field Parking Improvements – Adding additional gravel parking to the miniature aircraft 

field in Horn Rapids Park.  Constructions is expected to be complete in May. 

Sheriff  Department  Shooting  Range  –  Preliminary  design  and  cost  estimating  for  proposed 

shooting range adjacent to the Rattlesnake Mountain shooting facility. 

Moderate Risk Waste Facility – The solid waste division is purchasing the old road maintenance 

shop on Ely Street and converting it to a facility that will collect house hold hazardous waste (low 

level waste) and prepare it for transport to a disposal facility.  The permanent facility will replace 

the current practice of annual collection events and allow more frequent access to the public for 

this service.  The project is currently being designed by HDR Inc of Pasco WA.  

Administrative 

Sign inventory update – Adding all in field signs to the mobility software and changing the way 

signs are tracked.  A new naming convention has been devised that is consistent with the type of 

sign.  The old convention was difficult for people who were not intimately familiar with it to know 

what items they were looking for. 

Development Standards – Creating a comprehensive set of standard drawings and specifications 

for the construction of new roads and other public infrastructure by private developers. 

Web Mapping – Develop an online mapping tool that contains all of the data public works utilizes 

on a daily basis.  Work closely with the county’s GIS Department to ensure our data is accessible 

through their system. 

Goals for 2016 

Continue development of better interdepartmental cooperation 

Update policies and procedures 

Overhaul current filing system (digital and paper) 

Complete design and solicit bids for Moderate Risk Waste Facility 

Develop succession plan for department to address upcoming retirements 

Develop  long  term  staff  development  plan  for  employee  retention  and  growth  within  the 

organization 



BENTON COUNTY ROAD DEPARTMENT

The Benton County Road Department strives to provide the highest 
quality roadway infrastructure to the public through prudent use of 

resources, technology, innovation and teamwork.

Annual Report



Major Functions

• Road Maintenance
• Design and Construction Management
• Development and Permitting
• Fleet Maintenance
• Asset & Maintenance Management
• Pits and quarries
• Solid Waste Program



Road Maintenance

How we do it:
• 860 miles of roadway (605 paved, 255 gravel)
• 5850 signs
• 16 full time road maintenance workers, 2 road superintendents
• Up to 4 seasonal employees annually

What we do:
• Vegetation Management (Spraying, Mowing, Brush Cutting)
• Traffic Control Devices (pavement markings, signs, delineators) 
• Pavement Repair (patching, crack seal, chip seal)
• Gravel Roads (blading, rock raking, re-graveling)
• Snow and Ice Control (plowing, sanding, deicing)



Road Maintenance
Activity Quantity Unit

Patching 752 Tons

Blading 6,605 Pass Miles

Rock Hauling 12,263 Cubic Yards

Rock Raking 2,128 Pass Miles

Ditch Cleaning 103 Miles

Snow & Ice Control 1,600 Hours

Street Sweeping 386 Miles

Vegetation Spraying 1,450 Acres

Vegetation Burning 907 Hours

Mowing 1,401 Miles

Brush Cutting/Tree Trimming 2,612 Hours

Litter Cleanup 454 Hours



Design and Construction Management

How we do it:
• $3 million average annual expenditures
• 75% of expenditures are from state and federal grants
• 7 full time employees

What we do:
• New roadway design and construction
• Major roadway maintenance
• Right of way acquisition and management



Design and Construction Management
Accomplishments:
• 5 major capital projects completed ($3.4 Million value)
• Complete revision of County Standard Plans
• 26 bridges inspected
• Implemented GPS surveying equipment 



Development and Permitting

How we do it:
• 24 Subdivisions Reviewed (Short Plats & Long Plats)
• 275 Road Approach Permits Issued
• 55 Utility Crossing Permits Issued
• 2 Full Time Employees

What we do:
• Review of all residential and commercial development that impacts 

the County Road system



Fleet Maintenance (ER&R)

How we do it:
• 349 Vehicles and pieces of equipment currently being maintained
• 170 vehicles in the replacement program
• 80% of issues addressed in preventative maintenance
• 2 service locations (Prosser and Kennewick)
• 5 full time mechanics

What we do:
• Maintenance and Repair of all County vehicles and heavy equipment
• Maintain vehicles for 4 outside public agencies
• Control inventory for road department (sand, salt, aggregate, signs)



Asset & Maintenance Management
What we do:
• Catalog and track all physical assets (roads, bridges, drains, signs, etc)
• Maintain on line database of maintenance history
• Evaluate costs associated with ongoing maintenance activities
• Perform pavement surface condition ratings
• Compile annual road log report for submittal to CRAB



Pits and Quarries

How we do it:
• 10 Stock Pile Sites
• 8 active mines
• 268,644 cubic yards of aggregate on hand

What we do:
• Maintain aggregate inventory for maintenance operations and local 

and state funded capital projects



Solid Waste Program

How we do it:
• 7.5 tons of paper collected
• 0.25 tons of bottles and cans collected
• 80 tons of house hold hazardous waste collected

What we do:
• Administration of Coordinated Prevention Grant (CPG) from 

Department of Ecology
• Manages House Hold Hazardous Waste collection program
• Manages recycling program (paper, bottles, cans) for County offices



$5,821,754 

$2,129,347 

$1,896,338 

$3,147,076 

$271,292 

Road Maintenance Capital Projects
Engineering & Administration ER&R
Solid Waste

Biennial Budget: $37.0 Million
2015 Expenditures: $13.3 Million
Remaining for 2016: $23.7 Million

Budget Summary


	PH 1 - Comp Amendment.pdf
	Sheet1
	BOCC AG CPA 2016-0015.pdf
	Pass Ordinance     
	MOTION

	BOCC Res CPA 2016-001 Res.pdf
	RESOLUTION

	BOCC Lgl 6-14-16.pdf
	Benton County Planning Department

	PC PKT 3-8-16.pdf
	CPA2016-001 Exhibit Master List
	Sheet1

	CPA 2016-001 PC MEMO 2-17-16
	CH4 land Use Map 4.0 rev 2015
	Ch4 Land Use Map 4.6 rev 2015
	CPA 2016-001 1998 photo 2-16-16
	CPA 2016-001 2004 photo 2-16-16
	CPA 2016-001 2012 photo 2-16-16
	CPA 2016-001 COMP PLAN 2-16-16
	CPA 2016-001 Zoning 2-16-16
	EA2015-030 CPA dns
	CWPPS
	2016 CPA Docket 
	Benton County Planning Department
	Benton County Planning Department

	April 2016 PC Lgl 4-12-16.pdf
	Benton County Planning Department



	PH 2 - Zone Change 2016-001.pdf
	AGENDA ITEM
	MEMO DATE: June 7, 2016
	Prepared By: R.J. Lott
	Reviewed By: Michael Shuttleworth
	Consent Agenda 

	SUMMARY
	RECOMMENDATION
	BOCC Lgl 6-14-16.pdf
	Benton County Planning Department

	ZC 2016-001 Exhibit Master List.pdf
	Sheet1

	ZC 2016-001 PC MEMO PKT 4-12-16.pdf
	Benton County Planning Department
	ZC 2016-001 Exhibit Master List.pdf
	Sheet1

	April 2016 PC Lgl 4-12-16.pdf
	Benton County Planning Department


	ZC 2016-001 Exhibit Master List with PCH 1.1 & 1.2.pdf
	Sheet1


	Timed 1 - SUB 2016-002.pdf
	AGENDA ITEM    
	Prepared By: Donna Hutchinson
	Other   
	Consent Agenda 

	SUMMARY
	RECOMMENDATION

	Timed 2 - Public Works Annual Report.pdf
	BENTON COUNTY ROAD DEPARTMENT
	Major Functions
	Road Maintenance
	Road Maintenance
	Design and Construction Management
	Design and Construction Management
	Development and Permitting
	Fleet Maintenance (ER&R)
	Asset & Maintenance Management
	Pits and Quarries
	Solid Waste Program
	Slide Number 12




